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Annual Report
1 Introduction by our Member
Practices
The ‘Voices’ of Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG) Member Practices: How we have directly contributed to
the ongoing development of a highly performing clinically led
organisation
1.1

The CCG recognises the pre-eminence of clinical input in determining local
health provision and so as member practices of the CCG, we play a central
role in commissioning local services.

1.2

Through well-defined processes and regular forums, our voices are heard.
The CCG makes this collaboration and leadership possible through the
SCEOS (Single Commissioning Engagement & Outcome Scheme). The SCEOS
facilitates and encourages practice participation in the ongoing development
of local health services.

1.3

All our practices are grouped in to six localities, each with a Clinical Lead
that sits on the Governing Body and Practice Manager Lead that feeds in to
ongoing work.

1.4

GPs and Practice Managers from all our practices in each of these localities
meet monthly to discuss and contribute to CCG strategy and planning and to
commissioning decisions.

1.5

Twice a year as a minimum, all practices attend Borough-wide events to
both review progress and work collectively towards an agreed way forward
on a number of issues, including service redesigns, local reforms, Greater
Manchester plans, (e.g. Healthier Together) and the QIPP agenda (Quality,
Innovation, Productivity and Prevention).
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1.6

Through these mechanisms we are able to monitor our collective progress
and performance against our objectives, and against agreed metrics and
ensure that the CCG is working to improve health outcomes for our
population.

1.7

The Framework of Excellence Survey work carried out with the Governing
Body earlier in the year showed that the CCG is considered to be a properly
constituted organisation with robust governance arrangements.

1.8

This year, the focus has been on continuing to embed the culture of clinically
led commissioning. We have made significant progress in redesigning a
number of patient pathways and services (including diabetes and respiratory
services) to meet the new model of care that provides services closer to
home.

1.9

There has also been significant focus on the potential changes being
discussed at Greater Manchester level including Healthier Together and
Greater Manchester Devolution. During the summer we all contributed to
the planning and delivery of the Healthier Together consultation at a local
level and were pleased to see Wigan Borough get a significant proportion of
the responses.

1.10 Next year, we will be working with the CCG to continue to systematically
shift more services out of the hospital setting, where appropriate, and in to
the community, closer to people’s homes. We will be working with them to
deliver the Five Year Strategic Plan (2014-19) and the 2015/16 Operational
Plan. Delivery of both the strategy and the plan will facilitate the change of
focus towards supporting people to manage their own health, prevention
and community-based services. (Please see the website for copies of both
these documents).
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Strategic Report
1 Our Vision & What We Want
to Achieve
Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning Group will ensure the
delivery of excellent health outcomes for the population it serves
in the Borough of Wigan, maintaining clinical excellence and
value for money.
1.1	Wigan Borough CCG is a clinically led membership organisation. All our
local GPs are members of the CCG and they, through their Clinical Leads,
set the direction of the CCG and ensure that our activities all contribute
towards the achievement of our vision and our corporate objectives.
1.2	We know we have the same health and care issues to other areas with a
similar industrial heritage. These include:
• Locally 25.8% of adults are obese and despite a reduction in the last 3
years (peak of 28.5%) this remains above the England average of 24.2%;
• The proportion of over 18 year olds that smoke is higher in Wigan
(22.8%) than the national average (20.0%);
• Prevalence of diabetes is higher in Wigan (6.5%) than the national
average (5.8%); and
• It is estimated that 30.7% of Wigan residents aged 16 plus (66,564
residents) are drinking at levels that are risky to their health. This compares
to 27.9% for England as a whole.
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1.3	Tackling the effects of our heritage is challenging and requires a new way of
delivering health services. Therefore, our ambitions for the people of Wigan
over the next five years are:
•A
 ddressing with our partners the wider determinants of health and
ensuring that they contribute to improving health outcomes;
• T argeting support on those patients with a higher dependency on health
services, to improve the management of the individual’s conditions and
contain the use of services;
• S hift the delivery of services from in-hospital to out of hospital in order
to create a sustainable Health and Social Care System in the Borough of
Wigan; and
•C
 ontinually improve the quality and efficiency of seamless care services
both in and out of hospital.
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2 CCG Outcomes &
Performance
Improving Patient Access to Healthcare Services
2.1 	Despite widely reported problems in other areas, we are assured that
our patients continue to be seen in a timely manner at our local A&E
department (the 4 hour 95% standard was achieved in Quarter 4 of
2014/15; national performance for Type 1 A&E units during this period was
87.2%).
2.2

 ll cancer treatment targets are being met for what is one of the most
A
vulnerable patient groups we care for.

2.3 	The patients we refer to our local hospital are seen within the 18 week
referral target for Trauma and Orthopaedic services. Our local secondary
care trust is one of only a very small number delivering this target nationally.
2.4	There have been significant improvements in waiting times for diagnostics
and the other outpatient services we refer patients to.
2.5	The CCG measures and monitors performance against a number of nonfinancial key performance indicators (KPIs). These KPIs provide assurance in
relation to the achievement of operational standards and plans, as well as
the progress against delivery of improved health outcomes.
2.6	A report on CCG Outcomes & Performance is presented on a monthly basis
to the Governing Body to ensure oversight and challenge.
2.7 	The CCG Performance Report is based around the Everyone Counts
Planning For Patients Guidance, issued by NHS England, and includes a
number of performance indicators grouped into four themes: Outcomes
Ambitions, NHS Constitution Measures, Activity Indicators and Better Care
Fund Metrics.
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2.8	The operational standards monitored are defined in the NHS Constitution.
The NHS Constitution brings together details of what staff, patients and the
public can expect from the National Health Service.
2.9	It is underpinned by The Health Act 2009, which includes provisions related
to the NHS Constitution and came into force on 19 January 2010.
2.10	The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also includes provisions related to the
NHS Constitution. These provisions came into force on 1 October 2012 and,
in the case of the NHS Commissioning Board and CCGs, 1 April 2013.
2.11	Wider information about the quality of health services commissioned
by CCGs and the associated health outcomes is provided by the CCG
Outcomes Indicator Set (CCGOIS).

Outcomes Ambitions
2.12	The Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) programme expects
CCGs to commission services that allow 3.75% of adults with relevant
disorders to access IAPT services during quarter 4 of 2014/15. At the present
time, published data is only available to quarter 3 (October to December
2014), which shows a performance of 1.98%. It is expected that the 3.75%
target will be delivered.
2.13	The IAPT programme additionally expects services to deliver a 50% recovery
rate. Quarter 3 performance for CCG patients is reported at 51.5%.
2.14	The CCG set plan to deliver a 60% Dementia Diagnosis Rate for 2014/15.
As at March 2015, this had been exceeded, with a reported performance of
64.1%.
2.15	As at February 2015, the CCG was on track to deliver its plan for Avoidable
Emergency Admissions. Against a year-to-date plan of 7,330 admissions,
actual performance was better at 7,216 admissions.
2.16	The CCG continues to work closely with healthcare providers to reduce the
number of healthcare associated infections for our patients. As at March
2015, no patients had been infected with MRSA for six months, while the
year-to-date number of Clostridium Difficile infections (101) was less than
the plan figure of 107.
2.17	Response rates for each of the Friends & Family Test patient experience
metrics – A&E, Inpatients and Maternity – at our local secondary care trust
exceeded 20% for the first time in February 2015, and improved further in
March 2015.
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NHS Constitution Measures
2.18

The operational standards that underpin the NHS Constitution relate to:
• waiting times for elective (planned) care;
• non-elective (unplanned/emergency) care;
• treatment of cancer;
• standards around same-sex accommodation; and
• timely follow-up for mental health patients discharged from inpatient care.

2.19	WBCCG has achieved virtually all of the operational standards, across
the 2014/15 financial year. There are three Referral to Treatment (RTT)
standards:
• 90% of admitted patients to be treated within 18 weeks of referral;
•9
 5% for non-admitted patients to be treated within 18 weeks of referral;
and
•9
 2% of patients on an incomplete pathway (waiting list) to be within 18
weeks of referral.
2.20	All three standards have been achieved in every month of the year. There
remain a small number of long waiters beyond 52 weeks. As at end of
March 2015, one such waiter was reported. The CCG is working closely
with providers to reduce the backlog of waiters and ensure nobody waits
beyond 52 weeks.
2.21	More urgent operational standards are in place for cancer patients, which
measure performance along various points of the care pathway.
2.22	The headline indicator for cancer patients measures the waiting time
following a GP referral and requires that 85% of patients receive their
first treatment within 62 days of the referral being made. Other indicators
measure referrals from different sources, such as screening services and
hospital consultant upgrades.
2.23	The final position for 2014/15 was that WBCCG had achieved the standard
for all cancer waiting time indicators.
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2.24	Operational standards for key diagnostic tests are in place and require that
a maximum of 1% of patients wait more than 6 weeks for their test. This
standard was not achieved for WBCCG patients in the first quarter of the
year.
2.25	Investigation showed that in the early part of the year, this was a result of
issues with imaging and endoscopy tests at Wrightington, Wigan & Leigh
NHS Foundation Trust (WWL).
2.26	WBCCG has worked closely with the provider to improve waiting times.
As a result, performance improved significantly and comfortably achieved
standard for the nine subsequent months to March 2015.
2.27	The national standard for Accident & Emergency (A&E) requires that 95% of
patients attending an A&E department must be seen, treated, admitted or
discharged in under four hours.
2.28	Despite widely reported problems in other areas, performance at our local
A&E department (WWL) exceeded the standard during Quarter 4 of 2014/15
at 95.2%. The national performance for Type 1 A&E units during this period
was 87.2%.
2.29	All providers of NHS funded care are expected to eliminate mixed-sex
accommodation (MSA), except where it is in the overall best interest of the
patient.
2.30	A total of 6 WBCCG patients had experienced an MSA breach in the year to
March 2015. In all cases, the breach was attributed to bed pressures.
2.31

There are three standards for ambulance response times:
•7
 5% of Red 1 (immediately life threatening) incidents to receive a
response within 8 minutes;
•7
 5% of Red 2 (may be life threatening) incidents to receive a response
within 8 minutes; and
• 95% of all Red incidents to receive a response within 19 minutes.

	Across the full North West Ambulance Service area, none of the three
standards were achieved in the year to March 2015.
2.32	The Care Programme Approach requires that 95% of patients discharged
from psychiatric inpatient care receive a follow-up contact within seven
days.
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2.33	The full year position for 2014/15 indicated that this had been delivered for
94.3% of WBCCG patients.

Activity Indicators
2.34	The CCG established plans and managed performance against a number of
hospital (general and acute specialities) activity areas:
• elective (planned) hospital admissions;
• non-elective (unplanned/emergency) hospital admissions;
• first outpatient attendances; and
• accident and emergency (A&E) attendances.
2.35	Against a background of an increasing and aging population, the CCG
developed ambitious plans to deliver absolute reductions in year-on-year
activity.
2.36	As at March 2015, the year-end position indicated that only elective
Ordinary admissions had achieved plan. However, the value of setting
such ambitious plans can be seen on the year-on-year figures, which have
delivered year-on-year reductions in most areas.
2.37	The number of both elective Ordinary and elective Daycase admissions to
hospital was lower than the previous year in 2014/15. Daycase admissions
were reduced by 0.02%, while Ordinary admissions were reduced by 1.4%.
As a result, total elective admissions were reduced by 0.2%.
2.38	Non-Elective admissions showed a reduction of 577 in the year to March
2015.
2.39	The number of A&E attendances at our local secondary care trust (WWL)
reduced by 1.7%, when compared to 2013/14 attendance figures.
2.40	The only activity area showing year-on-year growth is outpatient
attendances. First attendances had increased by 4.3% in the year 2014/15.

Better Care Fund Metrics
2.41	The CCG has worked in partnership with Wigan Council to develop plans
for a number of metrics across health and social care, to support the Better
Care Fund.
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2.42	Performance management of these metrics and plans will be undertaken
by the Wigan Health & Wellbeing Board (HWB) throughout 2015/16, with
2014/15 performance used as a baseline.
2.43	The headline metric for all HWBs is a reduction in Non-Elective admissions
hospitals. The Wigan HWB has established a plan to reduce the number of
admissions by 3.5% against the 2014 outturn figure.
2.44	In support of this headline metric, the CCG and Wigan Council have
established plans for a basket of other health and social care indicators:
• admissions to residential and nursing care homes;
• proportion patients accessing reablement services remaining at home;
• rate of delayed transfers of care;
• percentage of patients feeling supported to manage their condition; and
• rate of emergency readmissions to hospital within 30 days.
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3 Financial Review 2014/15
3.1	Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning Group was licenced from 1 April
2013 under provisions enacted in the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which
amended the National Health Service Act 2006.
3.2	The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015, as presented in Section
C, have been prepared by the Clinical Commissioning Group under section
17 of schedule 1A of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) in
the form which the Secretary of State has, with the approval of the Treasury,
directed.
3.3	The accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis. Details can be
found in Note 1.1 of the financial statements in Section C.

2014/15 performance against the CCG’s primary financial
indicators
3.4	Clinical Commissioning Groups have a number of financial duties under the
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). Note 42 of the financial
statements refer to the financial performance of the CCG in relation to its
statutory duties.
3.5	The CCG is pleased to report that it has successfully met all of its statutory
financial duties in 2014/15.
	

As the local leader of NHS services in Wigan Borough, it has;
• Achieved operational financial balance and reported a planned surplus of
£5.4million which can be carried forward to spend on healthcare in Wigan
in future years;
• Managed to stay within its cash target;
• Achieved its full Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Performance (QIPP)
target for the financial year;
• Maintained the costs of CCG administration below its budget of £25 per
head of population; and
• The CCG has spent £415.9million in the year on healthcare services for the
population of Wigan Borough, and a further £7.4million on administration
for the running of the CCG.
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The areas of spend are shown in the following graphic:

3.6	Secondary care represents the majority of the CCG’s costs and includes
the cost of contracts with hospitals to provide services such as Accident
and Emergency, Maternity, General Medicine and Surgery. The cost of
ambulance services conveying people to hospital is also included here.
3.7	The CCG face increasing demand for secondary care services year on year.
Therefore, it has invested heavily in 2014/15, and will continue to do so in
2015/16, on schemes that are aimed at reducing demand on the hospital
system and caring for patients in a community based setting where it is
clinically appropriate to do so.
3.8	In addition £1.0million has been invested in secondary care services to
improve the time between referral and treatment and a further £4.1million
has been invested to support the system in winter, of which £2.3million
went into secondary care services and £1.7million into non acute services
that supported the health system throughout winter such as primary care,
discharge teams, therapists, and transport services.
3.9	Primary Care includes the cost of drugs prescribed and provided by GPs
as part of the service they provide for Wigan Borough residents and local
enhanced services commissioned for Wigan Borough patients. It also
includes the costs of GP Information Technology.
3.10	The costs of prescribing have increased by over £1.3million throughout
2014/15; therefore the CCG has invested additional funds in 2015/16 in
prescribing.

Section A Financial Review 2014/15

13

3.11	Community Health Services includes the cost of the services provided in
a community setting or in patients own homes, such as District Nurses,
Therapists and Community Clinics. The cost of the contract for the Out of
Hours service and Walk In Centre are also included here.
3.12	Mental health services include the costs of our main contract to provide
mental health and learning disability support within the Borough. This
includes psychological therapies (counselling services) and inpatient medical
care for patients with mental health conditions.
3.13 	The CCG has provided some non-recurrent support for schemes such as
the Sanctuary, a night time crisis centre which have proved very successful;
therefore, this support has been made recurrent from 2015/16.
3.14 	The CCG has continued to invest £1.0million in Mental Health services
to implement a Rapid Assessment Interface and Discharge (RAID) team
working across the health economy.
3.15 	Continuing Health Care is a package of medical care arranged and funded
solely by the NHS. It can be delivered in any setting and can include the full
cost of a place in a nursing home. The CCG has a number of residents who
meet the criteria, and have been assessed as eligible for fully funded NHS
care.
3.16	Demand for continuing care services has grown steadily throughout
2014/15 therefore the CCG has invested a further £2.0million in these
services for 2015/16.
3.17 	Other Clinical Services includes the costs of paying for clinical premises, and
the costs of joint work with Wigan Council in supporting the local health
and social care system.
3.18 	Administrative costs are the costs of the departments within the CCG which
support the process of commissioning the healthcare services described
above.
3.19 	The management of the CCG contracts throughout the lifecycle of a
service is performed to the highest possible standard. In 2014/15 the CCG
has managed its contract with its main secondary care provider within
its available financial resource, as well as performance managing them
effectively.
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Financial planning over the next 5 years
3.20 	The CCG has delivered its financial statutory duties in 2014/15. However, in
keeping with the wider NHS it is faced with significant financial challenges.
3.21

T he challenges faced by the NHS in terms of funding have been well
publicised. However, the CCG has set in place financial plans that it believes
will put it in a position to maintain high quality healthcare services over the
coming years despite the pressures.

3.22 	As the CCG had previously set long term financial plans for the period
2016/17 to 2018/19, it was only required to produce a refreshed detailed
financial plan for the next year (2015/16), which was ratified by the
Governing Body on 24th March 2015, and submitted to NHS England on
7th April 2015.
3.23	These were sufficiently detailed to assure the member practices (through
the Governing Body) of the organisation’s ongoing capability and capacity
to meet its duties and responsibilities including arrangements for good
financial governance.
3.24 	The CCG has developed detailed plans in conjunction with Wigan Council
that support systems and processes to commission schemes and projects
which support the greater integration of health and social care services.
3.25	These plans will be managed through the ‘Better Care Fund’, a pooled
budget hosted by Wigan Council, commencing on 1st April 2015. These
plans were approved by NHS England in January 2015.
3.26 	The CCG has included significant schemes within its financial plan to
manage demand for healthcare services. These schemes aim to reduce
demand in to secondary care services by significant investment in areas such
as the Muscular Skeletal Clinical Assessment and Treatment Service run by
Bridgewater Community Foundation Trust and investment in the Ambulatory
Assessment Area within Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh Foundation Trust to
avoid patients requiring admission to hospital.
3.27 	In 2015/16, the CCG has been delegated authority to co-commission
primary care services with NHS England. This means that the CCG will have
the authority to manage GP contracts in the way that best reflects the needs
of Wigan patients. The CCG has been delegated the budget for this added
responsibility, and will have to manage primary care services within this
budget.
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3.28	The CCG has invested in mental health services proportionate to the
growth monies received of just over 2.5% as required by NHS England. This
investment has been in schemes such as investments in:
• The Sanctuary, a night time crisis support service;
• Early intervention in psychosis;
• Improving access to psychological therapies; and
• A care home liaison service.
3.29 	A further challenge faced by the CCG in 2015/16 is the reduction of its
running cost allocation by 10%. The CCG have been preparing for this
throughout 2014/15 and have been able to reduce administration costs by
the required amount.
3.30 	The financial plan for the next financial year demonstrates that the CCG has
planned to;
• Deliver all of its services, and remain in financial balance;
• Deliver all its financial statutory duties;
• Have QIPP schemes as an integrated part of the plan;
•M
 anage its non-recurrent funds for future investment in service
transformation;
•M
 anage the financial risks around secondary healthcare demand,
continuing healthcare budgets, the costs of GP prescribing and the cocommissioning of primary care;
•M
 anage the costs of its administration within the resource allowance,
which has been reduced by 10%; and
• Meet any known requirements of NHS England.
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3.31

Specific financial targets set within the 2015/16 plan include;
• Achievement of a QIPP target of £22.8million;
• Delivery of a 1.0% surplus on allocations;
• Setting aside 0.5% of its allocation as a contingency for in-year risk;
• Spending at least 1% of its allocation on a non-recurrent basis;
•M
 aintaining the cost of its administration within its resource allowance
which reduces by 10%;
• S etting aside the funding to ensure risks are planned for and can be
mitigated; and
• Maintaining a recurrent surplus of at least 2% of revenue resources.

Financial risks
3.32	The financial plans have been developed to meet the requirements of
the CCG within the available resources allocated to it. However risks are
highlighted within the plan and include;
• Increased levels of secondary care activity above the levels set out in the
contract;
• Non-delivery of QIPP efficiency savings;
• Continued growth in continuing healthcare services;
• Continued growth in prescribing costs;
• T aking back delegated responsibility for the co-commissioning of primary
care and any additional costs associated with that responsibility:
• T he CCG may also be delegated some specialist commissioned services
that could present further financial risks; and
•C
 ommunity based services and primary care are unable to absorb
increased demand due to the re-direction of patients from a secondary
care setting.
3.33	The full financial statements included within Section C of this document,
giving more detail on the numbers reported within this financial review.
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4 CCG Strategy for the
next 5 years
4.1 	Our ambitions for the people of the Borough of Wigan over the next 5 years
are:
• Addressing the wider determinants of health and ensuring that they
contribute to improving health outcomes;
• Targeting support on those patients with a higher dependency on health
services, to improve the management of the individual’s conditions and
contain the use of services;
• Shift the delivery of services from in-hospital to out of hospital in order
to create a sustainable Health and Social Care System in the Borough of
Wigan; and
• Continually improve the quality and efficiency of seamless care services
both in and out of hospital.
4.2	Our system vision, shared with the local council, is that “Health and social
care services should support people to be well and independent and
to take control of their own care, services should be provided at
home, in the community or in primary care, unless there is a good
reason why this should not be the case. All services in our Borough
should be safe and of a high quality and part of an integrated
sustainable system led by primary care”.
4.3	If we move forward to 2018/19 we will see a smaller local Secondary
care sector based on a reduced number of sites (currently 4 sites), dealing
primarily with those patients that cannot be seen in another setting.
4.4

T he Hospital will still provide secondary care medicine, some general
surgery, trauma services and other supporting services as appropriate. It will
mean that funding in the secondary care sector will be reduced by between
35% - 40%.
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4.5	This money will be invested in services provided outside of a hospital setting.
Services in the secondary care sector will be networked across a Greater
Manchester and North West footprint, providing both in reach and outreach
services.
4.6	Highly specialised services will be focused at centres of excellence within
Greater Manchester and the North West, reducing variety, improving quality
and safety and ensuring the future of Health and Social Care services.
4.7	Services within the community will be focused around groups of GP
practices providing integrated Health and Social Care for the patient.
Patients will not see the different provider organisations as separate; their
care will be continuous and integrated.
4.8	Primary Care will be focused on managing the whole patient experience,
creating a complete picture of the patient and their health needs. Services
will be delivered across the Borough from the excellent LIFT estate, delivering
care closer to the patient from good, well-resourced facilities.
4.9	The Wigan Health Economy is facing an unprecedented challenge. Over
the next five years we have identified a £50 million funding challenge set
against a background of delivering health and wellbeing services to meet
the needs of a deprived and ageing population, it is paramount that we
maintain our focus on improving quality and ensure the future sustainability
of our system.
4.10 	In support of this we have a shared transformational agenda within the local
health system. Our Health and Wellbeing Strategy is built on three pillars
described as:
• Start Well;
• Live Well; and
• Age Well.
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4.11 	Only by working together will we meet the needs of the population of our
Borough and the £50m funding challenge of the coming years. We have
been transparent with our partners about the challenge that lies ahead and
we have a common understanding of the radical transformation required
and the shared responsibility we have to jointly share and manage the
associated risks this brings.
4.12 	The CCG fully supports the principle of equality and diversity in service
provision and employment and opposes all forms of unlawful or unfair
discrimination. It will continue to promote service user involvement,
personal responsibility and respect for the rights of others; whilst accounting
for issues of equality and diversity. Further details are to be found in the
Members Report, section A16.
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Business Model
4.13	The CCG ensures delivery of its responsibilities and duties under the Health
and Social Care Act 2012 and delivers those responsibilities and duties in
line with the constitutional arrangements.
4.14	The membership of WBCCG has established a governing body in order to
undertake the business of WBCCG and to discharge its statutory functions.
4.15	Membership of the governing body is in line with statute and in addition
is representative of the membership through the elected locality clinical
executive membership.
4.16	Localities support the operating infrastructure between the CCG and
practices, encouraging practice participation, organisational coherence and
the sharing of good practice.
4.17	Each member of the governing body shares responsibility as part of the
corporate body, to ensure that the CCG exercises its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically, with good governance and in accordance with
the terms of its constitution. Each member brings their unique perspective,
informed by their expertise and experience.
4.18	The CCG is led by one elected Clinical Lead who is Chairman of the
Governing Body.
4.19	There are six localities: Atherleigh; Patient Focus; TABA; North Wigan; Wigan
Commissioning and United League Commissioning.
4.20	Each of the six localities is represented by an elected GP clinical lead. Added
to that, GPs in the localities offer support by taking on clinical lead positions
for specific work streams (for example, Long Term Conditions) and each
GP Practice in the locality is committed to engaging with the CCG through
locality meetings and other forums.
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5 Discharge of Statutory Duties
5.1	The CCG has a number of duties imposed on it by the National Health
Service Act 2006 (as amended). The general duties are stated below with a
corresponding commentary describing how we have delivered them:

Statutory Duty

How WBCCG Discharged the Duty in 2014/15

WBCCG has acted
with a view to
ensuring that
health services
are provided
in a way which
promotes the
NHS Constitution,
and that it
has promoted
awareness of the
NHS Constitution
among patients,
staff and members
of the public

• WBCCG commissions services to ensure that the NHS constitutional
standards are met by commissioning the correct levels of activity
with adequate resources, appropriate contract levers and robust
monitoring.

WBCCG must
exercise its
functions
effectively,
efficiently and
economically

• The CCG has achieved a 2.5% recurrent surplus at the end of
2014/15 and received an unqualified report from its external
auditors in 2013/14.

• WBCCG has focused on strengthening its patient and public
engagement in all of its planning activities.
• Performance monitoring is based on the NHS constitution and a
report is presented to the monthly Governing Body meeting which
is open to the public. The report is also available on the CCG’s
website.

• The Local Area Team of NHS England in its annual assurance
assessment in July 2014 wrote “There are also excellent monitoring
systems in place at the CCG that are used to assure yourselves
and enable the CCG to provide assurance to the Area Team on a
regular basis.”
• NHS England approved amendments to the CCG’s constitution
in January 2015 including full delegation of primary care cocommissioning from April 2015.
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Statutory Duty

How WBCCG Discharged the Duty in 2014/15

WBCCG must
exercise its
functions with a
view to securing
continuous
improvement in
the quality of
services

• Under the NHS Contract each Provider is required to attend
a quality review group. In WBCCG the Quality, Safety and
Safeguarding Groups (QSSGs) are responsible for receiving quality
assurance data and information from each of the local NHS
Provider Trusts for scrutiny and challenge.
• This data is triangulated with information available to WBCCG and
also with information collated from Service User Experiences of
Care data.
• The QSSG Chairperson reports directly to the Clinical Governance
Committee. The QSSG meetings consider and take action on
assurances on the quality and safety of commissioned services in
line with the Provider quality assurance schedules.
• Evidence presented in February 2015 confirmed that Secondary
Care, Community and Mental Health Trusts have met
Commissioning for Quality & Innovation targets.

WBCCG has
assisted and
supported NHS
England in
discharging its
duties relating to
securing the
continuous
improvement in
the quality of
primary medical
services

• The CCG agreed that the Single Commissioning Engagement and
Outcome Scheme (SCEOS) would provide funding for Practices
to attend an Annual Quality Peer Review. The review provides an
informal learning opportunity that allows Primary Care colleagues
(of all disciplines) to share good practice on a number of subject
areas.
• Quality Peer Review Programme has been established to reduce
variation in primary care against high level indicators
• A rolling programme of events has been developed by the Primary
Care Education Lead in conjunction with secondary care clinicians.
The Primary Care Education Lead is undertaking work to reduce the
variability of service delivery in primary care.
• Infection prevention and control support to practices through
GP Preventing Infection Together (PIT) programme with 95% of
practices signed up to programme.
• Six new Locally Commissioned Services launched (Inter Practice
Referral - Anti Coagulation and Joint Injection, Ring Pessary,
Proactive Health Screening for Patients Aged 75 and Over,
Influenza and Pneumonia and Winter Pressures)
• WBCCG patients and their carers are supported by knowledgeable
clinicians to make decisions about which medications to take to
help them to feel better and live longer. Where medication is taken
by a patient the clinician will ensure medication is used in a safe
way that is evidence-based and value for money for the NHS.
• The WBCCG Medicines Optimisation Peer Review Programme has
been published on the NICE Shared Learning Website this year as
an example of good practice in the implementation of the NICE
Medicines Optimisation Guidance.
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Statutory Duty

How WBCCG Discharged the Duty in 2014/15

WBCCG whilst
carrying out its
functions must
have a regard
to the need to
reduce inequalities
between patients
with respect to
their ability to
access health
services, and
reduce inequalities
between patients
with respect to the
outcomes achieved
for them

• As above the Quality Peer Review Programme has been established
to reduce variation in primary care against high level indicators

WBCCG promoted
the involvement
of patients,
their carers and
representatives
in decisions that
relate to the
prevention or
diagnosis of illness
in the patient,
their care and
treatment

• We commissioned Age Concern to work in in A&E to support
advocacy.

• A rolling programme of events has been developed by the Primary
Care Education Lead in conjunction with secondary care clinicians.
The Primary Care Education Lead is undertaking work to reduce the
variability of service delivery in primary care.
• A new Mental Health strategy outlines a number of actions to
move towards parity of esteem between mental and physical
health
• There is close working with local voluntary & community sector
organisations to gather patient experience data from population
groups most likely to experience health inequalities
• The CCG has provided funding for Age UK to develop a peer
support model in primary care to enable ‘less activated’ patients to
access appropriate community based support.

• Worked with Patient Participation Groups on medicines
optimisation.
• Commissioned with Local Authority and Age Concern a Primary
Prevention Scheme for older people.
• Piloted personal health budgets.
• Involved patients in a series of local ‘pathway’ redesigns.
• Patients have been involved in a wide range of service redesigns
and strategy developments including mental health strategy,
primary care transformation, integrated care, dermatology services
and winter planning.
• Close working with Wigan Council’s Public Health Team to promote
patient involvement in campaigns such as ‘Be Clear on Cancer’
• A new Clinical Reference Group is being chaired by Sandeep
Ranote as part of our partnership working with Wigan Leaders.
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Statutory Duty

How WBCCG Discharged the Duty in 2014/15

WBCCG enabled
patients to make
choices with
respect to the
aspects of health
services provided
to them

• Supported families with continuing healthcare.
• Continuation of a Choose and Book Local Enhanced Service.
• Promoted shared decision making with local providers.
• Circa 650 contracts across a wide variety of providers in different
care settings.
• An effective use of resources process to consider patient funding
requests outside of these contracts.
• Mental Capacity Act policy implemented to ensure best interest
decisions are made with involvement of friends and family.

WBCCG promoted
innovation,
research, education
and training

• The CCG continues to be a member of the Greater Manchester
Academic Health Science Network.
• Developed Quality, Innovation, Productivity & Prevention (QIPP)
plans in line with joint work with the Head of NHS Right Care.
• Annual QIPP scheme & Primary Care development event to
generate ideas for savings plans and improvement of quality.
• Continued development of joint education sessions between
Secondary Care and Primary Care Clinicians is in Primary Care
Education Leads work plan.
• A rolling programme of events has been developed by the Primary
Care Education Lead in conjunction with secondary care clinicians.
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Statutory Duty

How WBCCG Discharged the Duty in 2014/15

WBCCG made
arrangements
to secure public
involvement
when devising its
commissioning
plans

• The CCG’s Patients Forum continues to be actively engaged
with commissioning processes by attending and presenting to
Governing Body meetings quarterly and being involved with
procurement exercises.
• The CCG’s Engagement Team is continuing to work with a range of
voluntary sector organisations in order to involve a broader range
of communities in our work.
• We have commissioned local research to understand the public’s
perceptions on primary care access.
• The CCG continues to support the Student Health Group which
has been established by Winstanley College.
• In partnership with Wigan Council the CCG has supported health
events run by the Wigan and Leigh Youth Cabinet including
attendance by young people from across the Borough with learning
difficulties or physical disabilities.

WBCCG has a duty
to exercise its
functions with a
view to securing
that health services
are provided in an
integrated way

• The Integrated Care Strategy has been agreed with all local
partners.
• Integrated Neighbourhood Teams are running in all areas of
the Borough. These have provided a building block for the
implementation of the national Avoiding Unplanned Admissions
Enhanced Service. All 63 practices have signed up and over 5,500
care plans are now in place for patients across the Borough.
• Worked with the King’s Fund and local authority to implement a
system-wide dashboard for Integrated Care.
• The CCG is working with Wigan Council on a programme to target
citizens of working age known as ‘Live Well Key Workers’ to enable
them to achieve improved health outcomes.
• The CCG has an approved Better Care Fund ‘Section 75’
agreement in place with Wigan Council to support integrated
commissioning and integrated care delivery.
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6 CCG Partnerships
6.1	We work closely with our local partners to help us plan, commission and
deliver more integrated, efficient and patient-focused services and to meet
the local challenge.
6.2	In Wigan Borough we have strong local partnerships, led by the Wigan
Leaders’ Group. Wigan Leaders’ has representatives at the executive level
from all local health and social care organisations, including:
• Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning Group
• Wigan Council
• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (Community
services provider)
• 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (Mental Health services
provider)
• Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust – (Secondary care
services provider).
6.3	Wigan Leaders’ has developed a vision and strategy for delivery around
integrated care based on a life course model (start well, live well, age
well). All the organisations that sit on Wigan Leaders’ have committed to
delivering the strategy within their own organisations.
6.4	The strategy set by Wigan Leaders’ is delivered through the Wigan Leaders’
Tactical Programme Board, which also has representation from all local
health and social care organisations.
6.5	We also work closely with the local Health and Wellbeing Board,
Healthwatch Wigan, our patients and the general public. All these
stakeholders have been closely involved in the development of the local
strategy through meetings, committees and engagement activity.
6.6	It is essential that we work well with our neighbouring CCGs as well as our
partners. We are active members of the Association of Greater Manchester
CCGs and have supported activity on that footprint, including Healthier
Together hospital transformation plans and Greater Manchester Devolution.
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7 Sustainability
7.1	The CCG implements the principles of sustainable development within the
following specific areas and works with other organisations and the public
in the Wigan Borough so that we have a collaborative approach. The CCG
reduces carbon by:• Planning and buying services which are sustainable
• Making sure we do not waste energy or supplies
• Implementing a green travel plan
• Making sure that our Governing Body members and staff are aware of the
importance of sustainability
• Adapting to the changing environmental, social and financial climate
• Making sure we have plans in place to deal with adverse events such as
flooding and power failures
• Advising on procurement and disposal of Pharmaceuticals
• Assessing our performance on sustainability
7.2 	Smarter working can improve patient experience, clinical effectiveness and
reduce carbon and waste, we also monitor the performance of providers via
contracts.
7.3 	The NHS standard contract requires providers to report
performance against their carbon reduction management
plans.
7.4	Our carbon emissions, waste management, and finite
resource consumption measurements for 2014/15 are
included in our Sustainability Annual Report to be
found on our website, please follow the link below.
www.wiganboroughccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/ourgoverning-body/annual-reports
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8 Employee Profile
8.1 	The CCG is required to specifically state in this section of the report its
staffing profile.
8.2 	At the end of the financial year, the CCG had three staff at Very Senior
Manager Grade (VSM). There are 151 staff employed by the CCG. The
gender distribution of CCG employees is as follows.
Male

Female

VSM Members of the Governing Body:

1

2

All other Members of the
Governing Body:

10

1

CCG employees

44

93

			

Trish Anderson
Chief Officer
28 May 2015
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Members’ Report
1 Member Practices
The 63 member practices of the CCG, arranged alphabetically by
locality, are:
Atherleigh

Address

Brookmill Medical
Centre

College Street, Leigh WN7 2RB

Direct Access Surgery

79 Church Street, Leigh WN7 1AZ

Dr Esa

Grasmere Surgery, Leigh Health Centre, The Avenue, Leigh WN7 1HR

Drs Lewis, Martin and
Dr Saravanan

Leigh Health Centre, The Avenue, Leigh WN7 1HR

Dr Maung & Partners

Grasmere Surgery, Leigh Health Centre, The Avenue, Leigh WN7 1HR

Dr Sharma

Ormerod House, Atherton Health Centre, Nelson Street, Atherton
M46 0LE

Dr Spielmann &
Partners

Old Henry Street Medical Centre, Henry Street, Leigh WN7 2PG

Dr Trivedi & Partners

429a Warrington Road, Abram, Wigan WN2 5XB

Dr Vasanth & Partner

Ormerod House, Atherton Health Centre, Nelson Street, Atherton
M46 OLD

Lilford Park Surgery

Leigh Health Centre, The Avenue, Leigh WN7 1HR

Premier Health

The Bridgewater Medical Centre, Henry Street, Leigh WN7 2PE
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North WIgan

Address

Beech Hill Medical
Practice

278 Gidlow Lane, Beech Hill, Wigan WN6 7PD

Dr Munro & Partners

Shevington Surgery, Houghton Lane, Shevington, Wigan WN6 8ET

Pennygate Medical
Centre

109 Ladies Lane, Hindley, Wigan WN2 2QC

Standish Medical
Practice

49 High Street, Standish, Wigan WN6 0HD

Patient Focus

Address

Dr Ahmad & Partners

Platt Bridge Health Centre, Rivington Avenue, Platt Bridge, Wigan
WN2 5NG

Dr Ashworth & Partners

246 Wigan Road, Bryn, Wigan WN4 0AR

Dr Gupta

The Bridgewater Medical Centre, Henry Street, Leigh WN7 2PE

Dr MohanKumar &
Partner

Chandler House, Worsley Mesnes Health Centre, Poolstock Lane,
Wigan WN3 5HL

Dr Ollerton & Partner

Chandler House, Worsley Mesnes Health Centre, Poolstock Lane,
Wigan WN3 5HL

Dr Sharma & Partners

Medicentre, 185 Wigan Road, Ashton-in-Makerfield WN4 9SL

Dr Tun & Partners

Hindley Health Centre, 17 Liverpool Road, Hindley WN2 3HQ

Dr Zaman & Partner

Chandler House, Worsley Mesnes Health Centre, Poolstock Lane,
Wigan WN3 5HL

Foxleigh Surgery

The Bridgewater Medical Centre, Henry Street, Leigh WN7 2PE

Marus Bridge Practice

Chandler House, Worsley Mesnes Health Centre, Poolstock Lane,
Wigan WN3 5HL

Shakespeare Surgery

Chandler house, Worsley Mesnes Health Centre, Poolstock Lane,
Wigan WN3 5HL
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Tyldesley, Atherton,
Boothstown and Astley

Address

Astley General Practice

391a Manchester Road, Astley M29 7BY

Dr Anderson & Partners

Boothstown Medical Centre, 239 Mosley Common Road, Worsley,
Manchester M29 1BZ

Dr Atrey & Partner

Meadowview Surgery, Ormerod House, Nelson Street Atherton M46
0LJ

Dr CP Khatri

The Surgery, High Street, Tyldesley M29 8AL

Dr Hatikakoty

The Medical Centre, Bee Fold Lane, Atherton, M46 0BD

Dr K K Chan

Seven Brooks Medical Centre, 21 Church Street, Atherton M46 9DE

Dr K Khatri

10 Higher Green Lane, Astley, M29 7HG

Dr Shah & Partner

Elliot Street Surgery, 145 Elliott Street, Tyldesley M29 8FL

Dr Sivakumar &
Partners

The Surgery, 1 Coldhurst Lane, Astley M29 7BS

IntraHealth (Leigh
Sports Village)

Leigh Sports Village, Sale Way Leigh WN7 4JY

IntraHealth (Leigh
Sports Village - Older
Persons)

Leigh Sports Village, Sale Way, Leigh WN7 4JY

IntraHealth (Tyldesley)

Ormerod House, Nelson Street, Atherton M46 0LJ

Leigh Family Practice

Bridgewater Medical Centre, Henry Street, Leigh WN7 2PE

United League
Consortium

Address

Ashton Medical Centre

120 Wigan Road, Ashton-in-Makerfield WN4 9SU

Braithwaite Road
Surgery

36 Braithwaite Road, Lowton WA3 2HY

Dr Anis & Partners

Golborne Health Centre, Kidglove Road, Golborne WA3 3GS

Dr Mahadevappa
Practice

Slag Lane Medical Centre, 216 Slag Lane, Lowton WA3 2EZ

Dr Pal & Partner

Morden Avenue, Ashton-in-Makerfield WN4 9PT
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Dr Saxena

Winstanley Medical Centre, Holmes House Avenue, Wigan WN2 6JN

Dr Shahbazi Family
Medical Practice

Golborne Health Centre, Kidglove Road, Golborne WA3 3GS

Dr Ullah

Platt Bridge Health Centre, Rivington Avenue, Platt Bridge, Wigan
WN2 5NG

Dr Xavier

The Surgery, 208c Newton Road, Lowton WA3 2AQ

Ince Surgery

Ince Community Clinic, Manchester Road, Ince, Wigan WN2 2DY

Lower Ince Surgery

Claire House, Lower Ince Health Centre, Phoenix Way, Ince Wigan
WN3 4NW

Wigan Central

Address

Aspull Surgery

Haigh Road, Aspull, Wigan WN2 1XH

Dicconson Group
Practice

Wigan Health Centre, Frog Lane, Wigan WN6 7LB

Dr Alistair

Ashton Clinic Queen’s Road, Ashton-in-Makerfield, Wigan WN4 8LB

Dr ART Thompson

7 Brooks Medical Centre, 21 Church Street, Atherton, Manchester
M46 9DE

Drs D’Arifat, Elislan,
Wan & Shaikh

Pemberton Primary Care Resource Centre, Sherwood Drive,
Pemberton, Wigan WN5 9DX

Dr Ellis & Partner

Mesnes View Surgery, Mesnes Street, Wigan WN1 1ST

Dr P Smith & Partners

Bradshaw Street Medical Centre, Wigan WN5 0AB

Drs Patel, Kamath &
Partners

Longshoot Health Centre, Scholes, Wigan WN1 3NH

Dr Seabrook & Partner

1 Wrightington Street, Wigan WN1 2AZ

IntraHealth (Marsh
Green)

Harrow Road, Marsh Green, Wigan WN5 0QL

IntraHealth (Platt
Bridge)

Platt Bridge Health Centre, Rivington Avenue, Platt Bridge, Wigan
WN2 5NG

Pemberton Surgery

Sherwood Drive, Pemberton, Wigan WN5 9QX

Sullivan Way Surgery

Sullivan Way Surgery, Sullivan Way, Wigan WN1 3TB
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2 Governing Body
2.1 	The Governing Body membership this year is detailed below. There has
been no change in membership, but one change to the voting rights:
the Director of Quality & Safety is now a full voting member of the CCG
Governing Body (as of the January Governing Body meeting).
2.2	An election took place in April 2014 for the Wigan Central Locality Lead
and Governing Body member. Dr Ellis terminated his contract with the CCG
due to retirement on 1st April 2014, and was re-elected under a fixed term
contract on the 19th May 2014 until 31st March 2016.
Members:
Dr Tim Dalton (Chair)
Mrs Trish Anderson, Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)
Mr Mike Tate, Chief Finance Officer
Mrs Julie Southworth, Director of Quality & Safety
Dr Sanjay Wahie, Clinical Lead for United League Collaborative Locality
Other Responsibility: Clinical Lead for Medicines Management
Dr Mohan Kumar, Clinical Lead for Patient Focus Locality
Other Responsibility: Chair of Finance and Performance Committee
Dr Ashok Atrey, Clinical Lead for Tyldesley, Astley,
Boothstown and Atherton Locality
Other Responsibility: Chair of Clinical Governance Committee
Dr Deepak Trivedi, Clinical Lead for Atherleigh Locality
Other Responsibility:
Dr Pete Marwick, Clinical Lead for North Wigan Locality
Other Responsibility: Chair of Service Design and
Implementation Committee
Dr Tony Ellis, Clinical Lead for Wigan Central Locality
Other Responsibility: Chair of Corporate Governance Committee
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Mr Frank Costello, Lay Member (Deputy Chair)
Other Responsibility: Lay Member with responsibility for Patient
and Public Engagement
Canon Maurice Smith, Lay Member
Other Responsibility: Chair of Audit Committee and Member Lead for Audit,
Remuneration and Conflicts of Interest
Dr Gary Cook, Secondary Care Consultant Governing Body Member
Ms Helen Meredith, Nurse Governing Body Member
2.3

The Audit Committee members throughout the year were:
Canon Maurice Smith (Chair)
Mr Frank Costello (Lay Member)
Dr Tony Ellis (GP Member and also Chair of Corporate
Governance Committee)

2.4 	The Governance Statement in section B2 provides details on the
membership of the other six committees of the Governing Body.
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3 Directors’/Members’ Interests
3.1	All members, CCG Governing Body members, patient representatives,
locality executive group members, and senior members of staff are required
to complete a Declaration of Interests which is updated regularly.
3.2	The Governing Body & Senior Management Profiles section of the
Remuneration Report in section A10 of this document contains details of
declarations of interest.
3.3	The Register of Interests is also easily accessible at the CCG’s offices and
posted on the CCG website at http://www.wiganboroughccg.nhs.uk/yourccg/our-governing-body/
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4 Pension Liabilities
4.1 	Note 4.5 to the Annual Accounts details how pension liabilities are treated
within the CCG.
4.2	The remuneration report also includes a pension report showing pension
details of the CCG’s senior management.
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5 Exit Packages and Severance
Payments
5.1

The CCG did not agree any exit packages or severance payments in year.
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6 Off-Payroll Engagements
6.1	The CCG policy, set by the Remuneration Committee, is that any senior
manager of the CCG will be contracted as an employee and paid through
payroll. There are no senior managers or members of the Governing Body
employed via off-payroll arrangements.
6.2	The CCG has put provisions in place to receive formal assurance that
anyone paid a more than £220 per day and employed off payroll for more
than six months is meeting their income tax and NIC obligations in full.
If that reassurance is not provided when requested, the contracts will be
terminated.
6.3	The CCG has three off-payroll arrangements for specialist or interim
contractors.
	Off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2015, for more than £220
per day and that last longer than six months are as follows:
Number
Number of existing arrangements as of 31 March 2015

3

Of which, the number which have existed:
For less than one year at the time of reporting

3

For between one and two years at the time of reporting

0

For between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting

0

For between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting

0

For 4 or more years at the time of reporting

0
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6.4	All of the off-payroll engagements listed above have at some point been
subject to a risk based assessment as to whether assurance needs to be
sought that the individual is paying the right amount of tax, and where
necessary, that assurance has been sought.
	For all new off-payroll arrangements between 1 April 2014 and 31
March 2015, for more than £220 per day and that last longer than six
months:
Number
Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months
in duration, between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015

3

Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses
giving the CCG the right to request assurance in relation to
income tax and National Insurance obligations

3

Number for whom assurance has been requested

3

Of which:
Assurance has been received

3

Assurance has not been received

0

Engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being
received

0

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or
senior officers with significant financial responsibility, during the
year

0

Number of individuals that have been deemed “board members,
and/or senior officers with significant financial responsibility”
during the financial year. This figure includes both off-payroll
and on-payroll engagements

14
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7 Sickness Absence Data
7.1

Note 4.3 to the Annual Accounts details the CCG’s sickness absence data.

7.2	The CCG has introduced a managing attendance policy and a health and
wellbeing strategy to proactively manage employees’ attendance in the
workplace and to reduce the number of days lost due to sickness.
7.3	For the 12 months January 2014 to December 2014, the average sickness
absence reported to the Health & Social Care Information Centre for the
CCG was 2.9%.
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8 External Audit
8.1	Grant Thornton are the External Auditors of the CCG. The cost of this
is £90,000 plus VAT for the financial year 2014/15, which all relates to
statutory audit services.
8.2	Grant Thornton undertake the statutory audit of the CCG’s financial
statements and as part of this they provide a conclusion on Value for Money
arrangements put in place by the CCG.
8.3	In conducting this work the CCG’s External Auditors consider key controls
and risks. In coming to conclusions, in addition to financial performance
and management, External Auditors also review the CCG’s leadership,
commissioning strategies, external relationships and data quality.
8.4	Key to this is an assurance that any potential conflicts of interest are
managed within the CCG. Conflicts of interest are reviewed as part of the
statutory audit, when all related party disclosures are fully audited.
8.5

There are no conflicts of interest between the CCG and Grant Thornton.
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9 Fraud
9.1	The requirements and responsibility for the Clinical Commissioning Group’s
anti-fraud and corruption activity is established within financial regulations,
the Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee and is compliant with the
NHS Standards for Commissioners. The Audit Committee ensures that the
CCG measures to counter fraud and corruption are embedded at all levels
across the organisation.
9.2

The CCG is committed to:
• Raising awareness of crime risks against the NHS, and work with NHS staff
and the public to publicise the risks and effects of crime against the NHS.
• Actively discouraging individuals who may be tempted to commit crime
against the NHS and ensure that opportunities for crime to occur are
minimised.
• Proactively detecting fraud in identified risk areas and ensuring that all
suspicions of fraud are investigated in a timely and professional manner.

9.3	The CCG’s Anti-Fraud Specialist (AFS) works with NHS Protect, who are the
national NHS Anti-Crime body to identify and tackle crime across the health
service.
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10 Serious Incidents (SIs)
10.1	There has been one serious incident relating to a release of personal
confidential data by email during the year. A report was submitted to the
Health & Social Care Information Centre in line with its requirements and to
the Information Commissioner who advised the CCG that no action would
be taken as a result of the incident.

Section A

Serious Incidents (SIs)

44

 ost Allocation and Setting of
11 C
Charges
11.1	We certify that the clinical commissioning group has complied with HM
Treasury’s guidance on cost allocation and the setting of charges for
information.
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12 Better Payment Practice Code
12.1

The Better Payment Practice Code is summarised as follows:
• Target: pay all NHS and non-NHS trade creditors within 30 calendar days
of receipt of goods or a valid invoice (whichever is later) unless other
payment terms have been agreed; and
• Compliance: at least 95% of invoices paid (by the BACS or date and issue
cheque) within thirty days or within agreed contract terms.

12.2 	The CCG confirms that it has achieved the Better Payment Practice Code,
full details of which are given in note 6 to the accounts.
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13 Prompt Payments Code
13.1	The Clinical Commissioning Group has signed up to the Prompt
Payments Code.
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14 Principles for Remedy
14.1	The CCG has fully adopted the six principles contained within the
Parliamentary & Health Service Ombudsman’s Report from 2010 within
its Complaints Policy and Procedures. The CCG is not aware of any
circumstances where it has caused injustice or hardship by maladministration
or service failure.
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15 Employee Consultation
15.1 	The CCG is committed to securing and promoting staff engagement and
involvement and values the opinions and views of employees recognising
that employees are able to contribute more effectively when they know their
duties and responsibilities; obligations, rights and have an opportunity of
making their views known on issues that affect them.
15.2 	We are committed to maintaining effective employee relations with
our employees and their union representatives, and consider that good
employee relations are an important factor in achieving our values,
behaviours and objectives.
15.3 	The CCG has a local staff side group which meets with the Chief Officer and
other colleagues on a regular basis.
15.4	There is an Employee Health and Wellbeing Group that meets monthly
to discuss and promote staff wellbeing, deal with any staff concerns and
spearhead our application for the Workplace Wellbeing Charter (currently
we have been awarded ‘Achieving’). This group reports in to the staff side
group and Corporate Governance Committee.
15.5	We hold quarterly staff briefings led by the Chief Officer to ensure that staff
are up-to-date with external and internal factors effecting the CCG and to
allow all staff to pose questions (anonymously or in person) to the Chief
Officer.
15.6	During the year we have held an optional staff survey with a 75% response
rate that explored how employees felt the CCG faired around equality
and diversity, harassment and bullying. An action plan has been produced
to tackle areas of concern, which included under-reporting of disabilities
amongst staff.
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16 Equality & Diversity
16.1 	The CCG fully supports the principle of equality and diversity in service
provision and employment and opposes all forms of unlawful or unfair
discrimination.
16.2	All patients accessing our services and all staff, whether part-time or fulltime and whether permanent or temporary, will be treated fairly and with
respect
16.3	The CCG has legal responsibilities towards disabled employees, as defined in
the Equality Act 2010. The concept of making ‘reasonable adjustments’ in
the workplace has been well established by the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. Within the Equality Act, this principle remains unaltered.
16.4	The CCG’s Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Strategy makes clear that
the organisation adheres to the social model of disability, where possible, so
that reasonable adjustments to the working environment may be required.
16.5	The aim is to ensure that disabled people have the opportunity to obtain
and remain in employment with the CCG and to support people who may
acquire impairment while in employment.
16.6	Appropriate adjustments may be made to: the working environment
(including equipment); terms and conditions of employment (such as
working hours); the duties of posts (such as re-allocating duties to other
team members).
16.7	We will ensure that a consistent, equitable and sustainable approach to
making reasonable adjustments is taken throughout the organisation.
16.8	We undertake to monitor the number and proportion of CCG employees
who identify as disabled and to report on this annually as part of our
workforce monitoring. This will also include the experiences of those
applying for employment with the organisation.
16.9	The NHS Equality Delivery System – to which the CCG is committed – also
requires us to publish this information.
16.10	We actively encourage disabled employees to identify as having impairment
or long term health condition, as experience shows that many people do not
do so for a number of reasons.
16.11 W
 e aim to adopt and implement good practice and standards which
support us to meet the Equality and Diversity in Employment Policy aims.
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17 Emergency Preparedness,
Resilience & Response
17.1	
We certify that the clinical commissioning group has incident response plans
in place, which are fully compliant with the NHS Commissioning Board
Emergency Preparedness Framework 2013.
17.2	The clinical commissioning group regularly reviews and makes improvements
to its major incident plan and has a programme for regularly testing this
plan, the results of which are reported to the Governing Body.
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18 Health & Safety Performance
18.1	It is the policy of the CCG to do all that is reasonably practicable to establish
and maintain high standards of Health & Safety, Occupational Safety, and
Welfare within the organisation so as to reduce risk and eliminate loss. The
legislative requirement for employers to obtain competent safety advice is
provided by the CCG’s Quality Improvement Manager.
18.2	To fulfil these responsibilities the CCG so far as reasonably practicable, will
ensure that arrangements are in place for the following:
• The identification and effective management of significant risks associated
with WBCCG activities;
• The identification and implementation of safe working practices and safe
systems of work;
• The provision of safe plant, equipment and machinery;
• The safe use, handling, storage and transportation of articles and
substances;
• The provision of information, training and supervision to enable all
employees to perform their duties safely with regard to their own health
and safety as well as the safety of others who could be affected by the
various activities of WBCCG;
• A safe workplace and a safe working environment with adequate welfare
facilities; and
• The effective monitoring of performance and commitment towards
continuous improvement.
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19 S tatement as to Disclosure to
Auditors
19.1 	Each individual who is a member of the Governing Body at the time the
Members’ Report is approved confirms:
• So far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the CCG’s external auditor is unaware; and,
• That the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken
as a member in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the CCG’s auditor is aware of that
information.
19.2	Relevant audit information means any information which may be needed
by the CCGs external auditor in connection with preparing their audit of
the CCG’s financial statements, and reaching their conclusion on Value for
Money arrangements.

Trish Anderson
Chief Officer
28 May 2015
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Remuneration Report
1 Remuneration Committee
1.1	The remuneration of the Governing Body of the Clinical Commissioning
Group is the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee.
1.2

The Remuneration Committee has the following membership:
• Dr Tim Dalton – CCG Chair;
• Mr Frank Costello - Lay Member and Remuneration Committee Chair;
• Canon Maurice Smith – Lay Member;
• Dr Gary Cook - Secondary Care Clinical Governing Body Member;
• Ms Helen Meredith – Nursing Governing Body Member;
• Dr Ashok Atrey - Clinical Governing Body Member;
• Dr Tony Ellis - Clinical Governing Body Member;
• Dr Mohan Kumar - Clinical Governing Body Member;
• Dr Pete Marwick - Clinical Governing Body Member;
• Dr Deepak Trivedi - Clinical Governing Body Member; and
• Dr Sanjay Wahie - Clinical Governing Body Member;

1.3 	All have been members of the Remuneration Committee throughout
2014/15. Dr Ellis terminated his contract with the CCG due to retirement
on 1st April 2014, and was re-elected under a fixed term contract on the
19th May 2014 until 31st March 2016.
1.4 	There have been two meetings in the year. All of the members attended
both meetings with exception of the two members noted below.
1.5 	Dr Ellis attended one Remuneration Committee meeting, and Dr Wahie has
not attended any Remuneration Committee meetings this year.
1.6 	The Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer also attended each meeting and
a Human Resources representative was also present at each meeting.
1.7 	The CCG has established a clear policy whereby when decisions are made;
any members who are personally affected by this decision are not included
in any discussions or vote to avoid any conflict of interest.
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2 Policy on Remuneration of
Senior Managers
2.1 	The Remuneration Committee has responsibility for setting the pay of the
CCG Governing Body.
2.2 	In considering pay awards the Remuneration Committee will consider all
relevant guidance, national awards, affordability and will benchmark data
for similar size organisations to enable a recommendation to be reached.
2.3	The pay of the Governing Body is not currently directly linked to
performance, that is, there is no specific performance related pay. However,
both the Governing Body and its individual members are subject to
performance evaluation.
2.4 	The Remuneration Committee has undertaken a Committee Effectiveness
Review during the year, facilitated by Internal Audit, and recommendations
arising from this review have been incorporated within the Terms of
Reference for the Committee for 2015/16.
2.5

In addition, each member is subject to Annual Performance Review.
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3 Policy on Senior Managers
Contracts
3.1 	Each Executive Governing Body member (3 in total) has a permanent
contract which began on 1st April 2013.
3.2 	This contract includes a 6 month notice period which can be served by
either party.
3.3 	The CCG may exercise its discretion to pay in lieu of notice for all or part of
the notice period.
3.4 	Of the Clinical Governing Body members, including Chair, 6 out of the 7
members have a 3 year contracts which began on 1st April 2013. Dr Ellis
terminated his contract with the CCG due to retirement on 1st April 2014,
and was re-elected under a fixed term contract on the 19th May 2014 until
31st March 2016.
3.5

These contracts include termination arrangements that state:
• If the employee wishes to terminate their employment, they must give the
CCG an appropriate period of notice in writing: A maximum of 6 Months;
• The CCG will give one week’s notice for each year of service subject to a
minimum of one month and a maximum of 6 Months;
• The CCG shall be entitled to terminate the individual’s employment
summarily, i.e. without notice or pay in lieu of notice, without prejudice to
any rights or claims it may have against them, if at any time they are guilty
of gross misconduct or if they commit any serious breach of a material
term of their contract of employment;
• If the individual is employed on a fixed term contract, their employment
will terminate on the expiry of the fixed term without the need for the
CCG to give any additional notice;
• The CCG may require an individual to take any outstanding annual leave
entitlement during their notice period, whether notice to terminate is
given by them or by the CCG;
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•O
 nce the individual or the CCG has served notice to terminate the
employment, the CCG may require the individual to remain away from
work and to cease to carry out normal duties for the whole or any part of
the notice period.
During any such period of absence:
• T he CCG shall be under no obligation to provide the individual with any
work but may require them to carry out alternative duties;
• T he individual will remain an employee of the CCG, bound by the terms of
their contract and will continue to receive their salary in the usual way;
• T he CCG may exclude the individual from any of its premises but may
require the individual to ensure that their line manager knows where they
will be and how they can be contacted during each working day (except
when they are on authorised annual leave, booked in the usual way);
• T he CCG may require the individual not to contact (or attempt to contact)
any employee, client or supplier without the consent of their line manager.
3.6 	There are no special provisions for termination due to redundancy other
than those stated for all employees in the CCG’s Organisational Change
policy.
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4 Senior Managers Service
Contracts
4.1 	There are four members of the Governing Body whose services are via a
Contract for Service.
4.2 	This includes the Lay Members, the Secondary Care Clinical Member and the
Nurse Member.
4.3 	These ‘Contract for Service’ are for a 3 year period from 1 April 2013 until
31 March 2016.
4.4

The termination arrangements for these individuals are as follows:
• C
 ontinuation of their appointment is contingent on their continued
satisfactory performance and re-election/selection by the members as
required by the Constitution. If the members do not re-elect the individual
as a Governing Body Member in accordance with the Constitution, their
appointment shall terminate automatically and with immediate effect;
• T he individual may resign from the CCG at any time by giving written
notice to the Chair;
• T he CCG reserves the right to terminate their appointment with
immediate effect and without payment of compensation by written
notice;
•O
 n termination of the appointment, the individual shall only be entitled
to accrued fees as at the date of termination, together with the
reimbursement of any expenses properly incurred prior to that date;
•D
 ue to the terms in the contract for service there is no liability to the
clinical commissioning group in the event of early termination.’
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5 Payments to Past Senior
Managers and Payments for
Loss of Office
5.1

No payments have been made to past senior managers.

5.2

No payments have been made to Senior Managers for Loss of Office
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6 Salaries and Allowances
6.1 	For each member of the Governing Body who has served during the
financial year 2014/15, remuneration and pension benefits are shown
below. This table has been subjected to audit.
2014/15 Remuneration and Pension Benefits – Governing Body
Name and Title

Salary and
Fees for
Governing
Body bands of
£5,000
£000

Other
Salary for
additional
clinical
posts (not
related to
Governing
Body post)
- bands of
£5,000

Taxable
Benefits rounded
to the
nearest
£100

Annual
Performance
Related
Bonusesbands of
£5,000
£000

Long Term
Performance
Related
Bonuses
- bands
of £5,000
£000

All Pension
Related
Benefits
** - bands
of £2,500
£000

Total bands of
£5,000
£000

Dr T Dalton
CCG Chair

65-70

0

0

0

0

32.5–35.0

95-100

Mrs T Anderson
Chief Officer

130-135

0

0

0

0

22.5–25.0

155-160

Mr M Tate
Chief Finance Officer

115-120

0

0

0

0

0***

115-120

Mrs J Southworth
Director of Quality and
Safety

100-105

0

0

0

0

7.5–10

105-110

Mr F Costello
Lay Member

25-30

0

0

0

0

0

25-30

Mr M Smith
Lay Member

10-15

0

0

0

0

0

10-15

Dr G Cook
Secondary Care Clinical
GB Member

10-15

0-5

1

0

0

0

10-15

Ms H Meredith
Nursing GB Member

10-15

0

0

0

0

0

10-15

Dr A Atrey
Clinical GB Member

55-60

5-10

0

0

0

0

60-65

Dr T Ellis
Clinical GB Member *

55-60

0

0

0

0

0

55-60

Dr M Kumar
Clinical GB Member

65-70

0

0

0

0

50–52.5

115-120

Dr P Marwick
Clinical GB Member

55-60

0

0

0

0

40–42.5

95-100

Dr D Trivedi
Clinical GB member

40-45

0-5

0

0

0

0

45-50

Dr S Wahie
Clinical GB member

40-45

35-40

2

0

0

7.5–10

85-90

Note – The total figure is expressed in bandings of £5,000 based on the actual remuneration values and therefore may
vary to the total of salary bands added together.
* Dr Tony Ellis retired on 1st April 2014, and was re-elected as clinical lead on 19th May 2014.
** The figures included as pension related benefits were not salary figures paid to any staff member. They represent the
potential value of their pension, which is contributed to by the CCG, less the employees own contributions. The total
figures also include this value and do not in any way reflect the salary paid to the employees.
***The calculation of pension related benefits resulted in a negative value which is shown as zero for reporting
purposes.
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6.2 	Remuneration and pension benefits for the prior year, 2013/14 are shown
below for comparative purposes.
	Pension related benefits data is provided by the NHS Pensions Agency
under Greenbury disclosure requirements. 2013/14 was the first year of
NHS officer pensionable remuneration for a number of the Governing Body
members. The calculation of benefits under this heading is mandated by
Department of Health “Manual of Accounts” guidance and resulted in a
high value in 2013/14, and therefore not comparable between the two
financial years.
2013/14 Remuneration and Pension Benefits – Governing Body
Name and Title

Salary and
Fees for
Governing
Body bands of
£5,000
£000

Other
Salary for
additional
clinical
posts (not
related to
Governing
Body post)
- bands of
£5,000

Taxable
Benefits rounded
to the
nearest
£100

Annual
Performance
Related
Bonusesbands of
£5,000
£000

Long Term
Performance
Related
Bonuses
- bands
of £5,000
£000

All Pension
Related
Benefits bands of
£2,500
£000*

Total bands of
£5,000
£000

Dr T Dalton
CCG Chair

65-70

0

0

0

0

290.0–
292.5

355–360

Mrs T Anderson
Chief Officer

130-135

0

0

0

0

50.0–52.5

180–185

Mr M Tate
Chief Finance Officer

110-115

0

7

0

0

77.5–80.0

190-195

Mrs J Southworth
Director of Quality
and Safety

100-105

0

0

0

0

67.5–70

165–170

Mr F Costello
Lay Member

25-30

0

2

0

0

0

25-30

Mr M Smith
Lay Member

10-15

0

0

0

0

0

10-15

Dr G Cook
Secondary Care Clinical
GB Member

5-10

0

3

0

0

0

5-10

Ms H Meredith
Nursing GB Member

5-10

0

0

0

0

0

5-10

Dr A Atrey
Clinical GB Member

50-55

15-20

0

0

0

0

70-75

Dr T Ellis
Clinical GB Member

65-70

0

0

0

0

0

65-70

Dr M Kumar
Clinical GB Member

65-70

0

0

0

0

195–197.5

260-265

Dr P Marwick
Clinical GB Member

50-55

0

0

0

0

510–512.5

565–570

Dr D Trivedi
Clinical GB member

40-45

0-5

0

0

0

0

45-50

Dr S Wahie
Clinical GB member

40-45

30-35

0

0

0

225–227.5

300–305

Note – The total figure is expressed in bandings of £5,000 based on the actual remuneration values and therefore may
vary to the total of salary bands added together.
*The figures included as pension related benefits were not salary figures paid to any staff member. They represent the
potential value of their pension, which is contributed to by the CCG, less the employees own contributions. The total
figures also include this value and do not in any way reflect the salary paid to the employees.
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7 Pension Benefits
7.1 	For each member of the Governing Body who has served during the
financial year 2014/15, pension benefits are shown below: This table has
been subjected to audit.
2014/15 Pension Benefits – Governing Body
Name and Title

Real
increase in
pension at
aged 60.
(Bands of
£2,500)
£000

Real
increase
in pension
lump sum
at aged
60. (Bands
of £2,500)
£000

Total
accrued
pension
at aged
60 at 31st
March
2015.
(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

Lump sum
at age 60
related to
accrued
pension at
31st March
2015.
(Bands of
£5,000)
£000

Cash
equivalent
transfer
value at 1st
April 2014
£000

Real
increase
in Cash
equivalent
transfer
value
£000

Cash
equivalent
transfer
value
at 31st
March
2015
£000

Employer’s
contribution
to stakeholder
pension
£000

Dr Tim Dalton
CCG Chair*

0–2.5

5.0–7.5

15-20

50-55

230

34

270

N/A

Mrs Trish Anderson
Chief Officer

0–2.5

0**

5-10

0-5

66

33

101

N/A

Mr Mike Tate
Chief Finance Officer

0-2.5

0-2.5

45-50

135-140

859

39

921

N/A

Mrs Julie Southworth
Director of Quality and
Safety

0–2.5

2.5-5.0

25-30

75-80

526

44

584

N/A

Dr Mohan Kumar
Clinical GB Member*

2.5–5.0

7.5-10

20-25

60-65

308

55

372

N/A

Dr Pete Marwick
Clinical GB Member*

0–2.5

5.0–7.5

25-30

75-80

482

60

555

N/A

Dr Sanjay Wahie*
Clinical GB member

0-2.5

0–2.5

10-15

35-40

164

15

184

N/A

*For these staff the pension figures include pension accrued as an officer only and does not include any pension
accrued as a practitioner. The prior year figures represent any pension previously accrued as an officer. 2013/14 was the
first full year as a Governing Body Member where these staff accrued pension as an officer.
Certain Members do not receive pensionable remuneration therefore there will be no entries in respect of pensions for
those Members.
**The calculation of real increase in pension lump sum resulted in a negative value which is shown as zero for reporting
purposes
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8 Cash Equivalent Transfer
Values
8.1 	A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital
value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular
point in time.
8.2 	The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent
spouse’s (or other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme.
8.3 	A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure
pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the
member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in
their former scheme.
8.4 	The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has
accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme,
not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.
8.5 	The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any
pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has
transferred to the NHS pension scheme.
8.6 	They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as
a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme
at their own cost.
8.7 	CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the
Institute and Faculty of Actuaries, and in accordance with the Occupational
Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) Regulations 2008.
Real Increase in CETV
8.8

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer.

8.9 	It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits
transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market
valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
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9 Pay Multiples
9.1 	Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the
remuneration of the highest-paid Member in their organisation and the
median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce. This information has
been subjected to audit.
9.2	The banded remuneration of the highest paid Member of the Governing
Body in Wigan Borough CCG in the financial year 2014-15 was £167,500
(2013-14, £167,500).
9.3	This was 4.5 times (2013-14, 4.5) the median remuneration of the
workforce, which was £36,700 (2013-14 £36,700).
9.4 	In 2014-15, no (2013-14, no) employees received remuneration in excess of
the highest-paid Member of Wigan Borough CCG. Remuneration ranged
from £2,500 to £167,500 (2013-14 £2,500 - £167,500).
9.5	Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related
pay, benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include
employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of
pensions.
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10 Governing Body Members’
Profiles
10.1

 r Tim Dalton – Chair (in post all year)
D
Dr Dalton is Chair of the CCG’s Governing Body. He is a partner and a
practising GP in one of the CCG’s local practices, Shakespeare Surgery which
is a member of the Patient Focus Locality. Dr Dalton’s vision for the CCG is
to see it ensure that all our patients experience an improved quality of care
delivered in a tangibly different way as near as practical to their home.

	
Declarations of Interest:
Dr Tim Dalton is a GP, GP Trainer and GP Appraiser. He is a director at
Shakespeare Surgery Ltd and Shakespeare Services Ltd and is also a
minority shareholder in Shakespeare Surgery Ltd, a company that provide
GMS Services to the NHS and a minority shareholder in Shakespeare
Services Ltd, a company that provides private travel, training and health
advice. Shakespeare Surgery Ltd is also a shareholder of Health First ALW
Community Interest Company, which acts a provider of various health
services and a mechanism for GP federated working. Dr Dalton is also a
member of the NW Leadership Academy Board.
10.2 	Mrs Trish Anderson - Chief Officer
(Accountable Officer, in post all year)
Trish is the Chief Officer of the CCG. She has worked in Wigan Borough
for most of her career in roles covering both health and social care services.
This wealth and breadth of experience provides Trish with a holistic view of
health and social care which is invaluable in taking forward the Integrated
Care agenda.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Trish Anderson is also a public sector director with Wigan LIFT/CHP (nonremunerated) Her husband is employed with Mersey Care Trust as a
Consultant Psychiatrist.
10.3 	Mrs Julie Southworth - Director of Quality and Safety
(in post all year)
Julie is Director of Quality and Safety for the CCG. She previously worked as
Director of Commissioning at Ashton, Leigh and Wigan Primary Care Trust.
Julie is committed to improving the quality of the healthcare that the people
of the Borough receive and in driving through changes that create better
outcomes.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Julie Southworth has no interests to declare.
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10.4 	Mr Mike Tate - Chief Finance Officer (in post all year)
Mike is a member of the Chartered Society of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA). He has worked in the NHS since 1983. Mike believes
that his role is important because it ensures that the CCG remains financially
solvent, delivers value for money services to patients, while allowing the
CCG to identify the required amount of investment to ensure patients
within Wigan Borough receive the best quality services available.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Mike Tate’s wife is an employee of 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation
Trust, she is also an Audit Chair/Governor of St John Rigby Sixth Form
College, a member of the ‘Heart of Mersey’ Charity Finance Committee and
Treasurer of the Wigan Branch of ‘Guide Dogs for the Blind’.
10.5 	
Dr Ashok Atrey (in post all year)
Dr Atrey is the Clinical Lead for the Tyldesley, Astley, Boothstown and
Atherton Locality and Chair of the Clinical Governance Committee. He is a
partner and practicing GP at Meadowview Practice in Atherton.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Dr Ashok Atrey is a general practitioner at Meadowview Surgery, Atherton
Health Centre. Dr Atrey’s wife is also a GP at the same practice and a
Partner. Dr Atrey has two sons who both work for the NHS. Dr Atrey is a
member of Wigan LMC and a member of CIC Health First Federation.
10.6 	
Dr Tony Ellis (Dr Ellis terminated his contract with the CCG due to
retirement on 1st April 2014, and was re-elected under a fixed term
contract on the 19th May 2014 until 31st March 2016.)
Dr Ellis is the Clinical Lead for Wigan Central Locality and the Chair of the
Corporate Governance Committee. He is a partner and practicing GP at
Mesnes View Surgery in Wigan.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Dr Tony Ellis is a Senior Partner and GP at Mesnes View Surgery. He has one
share in Wigan Federation. He is a board member of the Wigan Borough
Clinical Commissioning Group and also Corporate Governance Chair.
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10.7 	Dr Mohan Kumar (in post all year)
Dr Kumar is the Clinical Lead for the Patient Focus Locality and Chair of the
Finance and Performance Committee. He is a partner and practicing GP at
the Dr Russell and Partners Practice in Wigan. Dr Kumar chairs the Finance
and Performance Committee.
	
Declarations of Interest:
Dr Mohan Kumar is a Senior Partner at Dr Kumar’s Surgery. He is Associate
Director of Post Graduate GP Education, Health Education England. His
practice is a founder member of Health First Federation. He has interests
in GP Workforce Development and Post Graduate Training. His Practice
Manager is a director of Health First Federation.
10.8 	Dr Peter Marwick (in post all year)
Dr Marwick is the Clinical Lead for the North Wigan Locality and the Chair
of the Service Design and Implementation Committee. He is a partner and
practising GP at Beech Hill Medical Practice in Wigan.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Dr Marwick is a partner of Beech Hill medical practice. Dr Marwick’s Practice
is a member of the Wigan Federation of GPs. He holds a small amount of
Glaxo Smith Kline shares.
10.9 	Dr Deepak Trivedi (in post all year)
Dr Trivedi is the Clinical Lead for the Atherleigh Locality and a member of
the Clinical Governance Committee. He is also a partner and practicing GP
at Trivedi and Partners Practice in Leigh and Abram.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Dr Deepak Trivedi is a GP Partner at Westleigh Medical and Abram Surgery.
He is President of British International Doctors Association and a member of
Health First (Provider).
10.10 	Dr Sanjay Wahie (in post all year)
Dr Wahie is the Clinical Lead for the United League Collaborative Locality
and the Clinical Lead for Medicines Management. He is a practicing GP at
Lower Ince Surgery.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Dr Sanjay Wahie works in an SSP run Surgery in Higher and Lower Ince.
He is a shareholder in Cardium a GP Federation. His Wife is a consultant
histopathologist at Royal Preston Hospital and his brother is a consultant
dermatologist in Durham.

Section A

Governing Body Members’

Profiles

67

10.11 	Mr Frank Costello (in post all year)
Frank Costello is a Lay Member of the Governing Body, with particular
responsibility for patient and public involvement. He has enjoyed a long
career in public sector leadership as the former Deputy Chief Executive of
the Local Authority and Non - Executive Director of the Primary Care Trust.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Mr Frank Costello is the former Deputy Chief Executive of Wigan Council
and a Long Standing Governor of Wigan & Leigh College.
10.12 	Canon Maurice Smith CB (in post all year)
Canon Maurice Smith CB is a Lay Member on the Governing Body with a
lead for audit, remuneration and conflicts of interest and Chair of the Audit
Committee. He has a strong interest in education and was previously Head
of Ofsted. He continues to take an active role in education through his role
as Director of Education at Church of England, Diocese of Manchester.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Maurice Smith is a Director of Education for the Church of England in the
Diocese of Manchester. He is also a patient of Bryn Cross Surgery.
10.13 	Dr Gary Cook (in post all year)
Dr Cook was formally a consultant in Public Health Medicine and Clinical
Epidemiology in Stockport. He has both medical and legal qualifications. He
is a member of the Royal College of Physicians and Fellow of The Faculty of
Public Health.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Dr Gary Cook is the joint owner and director of Grove Health Ltd.
10.14 	Ms Helen Meredith (in post all year)
Helen is the Governing Body Lay Nurse for NHS Wigan Borough and she
also works with local CCGs to commission high quality person-centred care
services. She is an experienced clinician, with 24 years’ experience, whose
initial specialism was in Learning Disabilities.
 eclarations of Interest:
D
Helen Meredith is a director of HMeredith Ltd providing interim support to
NHS organisations.
10.15 	The Governing Body Member Declarations of Interest are regularly updated.
The most up-to-date list can always be found on our website (www.
wiganboroughccg.nhs.uk/you-cgg/our-governing-body).
10.16	All the Governing Body Members are identified as “senior managers”
for the purpose of the Remuneration Report. There are no other “senior
managers” within the CCG.
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 embership of Committees
11 M
and Sub-committees of the
Governing Body
The Chair and Chief Officer have open invitations to attend any of the
Committees of the Governing Body, and the Chief Officer is required to
attend the Audit Committee at least once annually.
11.1

Clinical Governance Committee
• Dr Ashok Atrey, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member
(Chairperson – in post all year)
• Trish Anderson, Chief Officer
• Julie Southworth, Director of Quality and Safety
• Dr Deepak Trivedi, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member
• Dr Sanjay Wahie, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member
• Helen Meredith, Governing Body Nurse
• Dr Gary Cook, Secondary Care Consultant Governing Body Member
• Two Locality Clinical Champions*

11.2

Corporate Governance Committee
• Dr Tony Ellis, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member
(Chairperson - Dr Ellis terminated his contract with the CCG due to
retirement on 1st April 2014 and was re-elected on 19th May 2014)
• Trish Anderson, Chief Officer (open invitation)
• Julie Southworth, Director of Quality and Safety
• Mike Tate, Chief Finance Officer
• Frank Costello, Governing Body Lay Member
• Canon Maurice Smith, Governing Body Lay Member

11.3

Finance & Performance Committee
• Dr Mohan Kumar, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member
(Chairperson – in post all year)
• Trish Anderson, Chief Officer (open invitation)
• Mike Tate, Chief Finance Officer
• Julie Southworth, Director of Quality and Safety
• Frank Costello, Governing Body Lay Member
• Locality Clinical Champion*
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11.4

Service Design and Implementation Committee
•D
 r Pete Marwick, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member
(Chairperson – in post all year)
• Trish Anderson, Chief Officer (open invitation)
• Julie Southworth, Director of Quality and Safety
• Mike Tate, Chief Finance Officer
• Frank Costello, Governing Body Lay Member
• Two Locality Clinical Champions*

11.5

Audit Committee
•C
 anon Maurice Smith, Governing Body Lay Member
(Chairperson – in post all year)
• Frank Costello, Governing Body Lay Member
• Dr Tony Ellis, Clinical Lead and Governing Body Member

11.6 	Remuneration Committee
For membership of the Remuneration Committee, please see section 1 of
the Remuneration Report above.
11.7	Healthier Together Committee in Common and Joint Committee
The Healthier Together Committee in Common and Joint Committee
comprises all the Chairs of the CCGs from Greater Manchester, including Dr
Tim Dalton, Chair, WBCCG.
11.8	Primary Care Commissioning Committee
The Primary Care Commissioning Committee was formally established by
the Governing Body in January 2015, but has not met in year and so has no
formal membership.
11.9 	Sub-committees:
The Governing Body has no Sub-committees.

*NB Locality Clinical Champions are individual GPs from our member practices that have a particular interest
they are committed to working with the CCG on. They play a vital role in widening the engagement of the
membership and providing a clinical perspective on specific issues. The clinical champion on any committee may
vary throughout the year dependent on relevant issues.

Trish Anderson
Chief Officer
28 May 2015
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1 S tatement of Accountable
Officer’s Responsibilities
1.1 	The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer
shall be appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England). NHS
England has appointed the Chief Officer to be the Accountable Officer of
the Clinical Commissioning Group.
1.2 	The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibilities for
the propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable
Officer is answerable, for keeping proper accounting records (which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical
Commissioning Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply
with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) and for safeguarding the
Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities),
are set out in the Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer
Appointment Letter.
1.3 	Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England
has directed each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each
financial year financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in
the Accounts Direction. The financial statements are prepared on an accruals
basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical
Commissioning Group and of its net expenditure, changes in taxpayers’
equity and cash flows for the financial year.
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1.4 	In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to
comply with the requirements of the “Manual for Accounts” issued by the
Department of Health and in particular to:
•O
 bserve the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the
relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis;
• Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
• S tate whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual
for Accounts issued by the Department of Health have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements;
and,
• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
1.5 	To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable
Officer Appointment Letter.

Trish Anderson
Chief Officer
28 May 2015
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 overnance Statement
2 G
2.1 Introduction & Context
2.1.1	The CCG was licenced from 1 April 2013 under provisions enacted in the
Health & Social Care Act 2012, which amended the National Health Service
Act 2006. As at 1 April 2014 Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning
Group was licensed without conditions.
2.2 Scope of Responsibility
2.2.1	As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that supports the achievement of the clinical
commissioning group’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the
public funds and assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance
with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public Money. I also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in my Clinical Commissioning
Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.
2.2.2	I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is
administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied
efficiently and effectively, safeguarding financial propriety and regularity.
2.3 Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
2.3.1	We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code.
However, we have reported on our corporate governance arrangements
by drawing upon best practice available, including those aspects of the UK
Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the CCG and
best practice.
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2.4 The CCG Governance Framework
2.4.1 	The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b)
states:
T he main function of the Governing Body is to ensure that the group has
made appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such
generally accepted principles of good governance as are relevant to it.
	The CCG has adhered to the Nolan principles of standards in public life. We
have also complied with the principles below contained in our published
constitution:
• Inclusivity: of clinicians and patients, local residents,
stakeholders and partners.
• Subsidiarity: by delegation to localities;
• Locality: by commitment to reflecting the locality requirements;
• Accessibility: by listening to and responding to the localities.
2.4.2 	The membership of the CCG has established a Governing Body in order to
undertake the business of the CCG and to discharge its statutory functions.
Membership of the Governing Body is in line with statute and in addition
is representative of the membership through the elected locality clinical
executive membership.
2.4.3 	Under the scheme of delegation there can be no provision to allow
any locality, practice or grouping of practices to delegate any CCG
responsibilities or functions to the governing body of the CCG as the CCG
is the corporate and statutory body and not the locality or other practice
grouping.
2.4.4 	Each member of the governing body shares corporate responsibility as
part of a team to ensure that the CCG exercises its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically, with good governance and in accordance with
the terms of its constitution.
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2.4.5	The Governing Body has 14 voting members, including the Chair. The CCG’s
constitution was changed in January 2015 to alter the Director of Quality’s
status from non-voting to voting. The Governing Body is clinically led and
has a majority of clinicians as members. The clinical executive members are
practising within the CCG area and GP members are on the performers
list of Wigan or the subsequent arrangements. The Governing Body
membership comprises of:
a) the Chair;
b) s ix clinical leads elected by, and representing each locality executive group
of member practices;
c) t wo lay members:
• one leading on audit, remuneration and conflict of interest matters,
• one leading on patient and public participation matters;
d) one lay registered nurse;
e) one lay secondary care specialist doctor;
f) the Chief Officer;
g) the Chief Finance Officer; and
h) the Director of Quality & Safety.
2.4.6 	The Governing Body has met in public and also in closed session each
month except August between April 2014 and March 2015. A minimum of
two thirds (67%) of members must attend for meetings to be quorate. This
has been achieved on each occasion and attendance has ranged between
85% in two months to 100% on four occasions.
See Appendix 1 for the attendance record of each member.
2.4.7

The Governing Body receives and reviews at each monthly meeting:
• New business items such as strategies and plans;
•C
 urrent business items such as the Corporate Report which evidences how
the CCG is performing against NHS England’s Everyone Counts planning
guidance and Better Care Fund guidance;
• Governing Body Committee update reports; and
• Locality Executive Meeting update reports.

Section B

Governance Statement

76

2.4.8 	In addition to the above and the work of the committees, the Governing
Body completed an assessment of its performance in November 2014 with
the support of the North West Leadership Academy. Using the Framework
of Excellence format focusing on Area 6, Clinical Leadership, a number
of achievements were acknowledged and development areas identified
including:
• Effective leadership with a clear vision for service improvement;
• T he quality of clinical leadership at Governing Body level is impressive but
needs to be demonstrated throughout the wider membership;
• T here should be more focus on the role as a clinical Governing Body
member as currently, colleagues appear to take on a more non-executive
role;
•A
 requirement to give more thought to succession planning, identifying
and providing support and education for future leaders;
• T here is a good level of clinical involvement from Governing Body to
Practice level.
2.4.9

At authorisation the governing body appointed six committees:

2.4.10	Clinical Governance Committee - It is the role of the committee to
demonstrate that there is an effective and consistent process in respect of
commissioning for quality across the CCG, also ensuring that any areas of
concern and under-performance are identified and high standards of care
and treatment are delivered.
2.4.11 	The committee uses the three core elements detailed below to define its
internal arrangements for Clinical Governance and to assess and measure
the quality of its commissioned services.
• Safety:
• Clinical Effectiveness: and
• Patient Experience.
2.4.12 	The committee provides assurance to the Governing Body with regard to
Clinical Governance activities in the appropriate areas of accountability and
in line with its terms of reference
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2.4.13 	The Committee has met monthly throughout 2014/15. The meetings have
been quorate throughout the year and attendance has been noted as
acceptable within the Chairperson’s Reports to the Governing Body.
See Appendix 2 for the attendance record of each member.
2.4.14 	Corporate Governance Committee – The committee provides assurance
to the CCG Governing Body with regard to all corporate governance issues
in the appropriate areas of accountability covering mostly non-clinical
controls and regulations.
2.4.15	The committee received quarterly presentations of the Governing Body
Assurance Framework (GBAF) with the remit of scrutinising risks, controls
and action plans. There was engaging debate about whether the GBAF
achieved the objectives that it set out to and whether assurance was actually
provided.
2.4.16	The committee tasked management with refining some presentational and
contextual aspects and received further assurance from the work of the
Audit Committee. It was concluded that the document is inclusive in its
content as specific risks were all owned by Associate Directors who engage
in a monthly update with the Governance Team.
2.4.17	A significant development within the GBAF was an attempt to demonstrate,
on a single page, progress against achievement of the CCG’s corporate
objectives. Further possible enhancements were discussed and these shall
be reviewed in 2015/16.
2.4.18 Progress reports were received by the committee at each meeting covering:
• Communications;
• Human Resources;
• IM&T;
• Information Governance;
• Equality & Diversity;
• E mergency Preparedness, Resilience & Response (including business
continuity arrangements);
• Health & Safety;
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• Incident Reporting;
• Risk Management & Assurance; and
• P atient Response (enquiries, complaints, freedom of information enquiries,
Member of Parliament correspondence).
See Appendix 3 for the attendance record of each member
2.4.19 	Finance & Performance Committee – The committee has implemented
and monitored the CCG arrangements around Finance, Contracting and
Performance, including nationally driven initiatives.
2.4.20 	The committee meets monthly and is chaired by a clinical governing
body member. It has a lay member as vice-chair and two locality clinical
representatives.
2.4.21 The key responsibilities of the committee are:
• Agree the annual planning timetable;
•O
 verview the annual planning process to ensure the delivery of the
following milestones:
		

o Commissioning intentions;

		

o Financial plan;

		

o Contracts with NHS and Non-NHS partners;

		

o Agree annual budget book;

• Overview the annual planning cycle for performance targets;
•R
 eview on behalf of the governing body the monthly finance, QIPP and
performance reports; and
•R
 eview and approve QIPP business cases; and link with the audit
committee to ensure the CCG produces a timely and accurate annual
report in accordance with reporting guidance.
See Appendix 4 for the attendance record of each member
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2.4.22 	Service Design and Implementation Committee - The committee
provides assurance to the governing body with regard to service strategy,
design, development and implementation, driven by the priorities of the
CCG. The committee facilitates the planning and coordination of initiatives,
service redesign and policy development.
2.4.23 	In the second year of business, the CCG project methodology has been
further refined into a system which is conceptually easy to understand and
apply but is underpinned by robust project mechanics, honed through audit.
This allows the committee to cope with the demands of oversight and
analysis of transformational change programmes, whilst also attending to
strategic development and the implementation of minor change and service
improvement.
2.4.24 	The collaborative Wigan Leaders joint programme management structure
is maturing and beginning to facilitate and coordinate change across the
Integrated Care transformational change programme. Notwithstanding
this and any future developments, the SDI Committee is still the controlling
authority for commissioner led health change within the system.
See Appendix 5 for the attendance record of each member.
2.4.25 	Audit Committee - The committee reviews the establishment and
maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, financial
oversight, internal control and risk management across the whole of the
CCG’s activities (both clinical and non-clinical) that support the achievement
of the objectives.
2.4.26 	The CCG audit committee has three members, two are lay members
and one is the Governing Body clinical executive member responsible
for corporate governance. It meets every quarter and each meeting was
attended by all three members.
2.4.27 The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to:
• Review and adopt the CCG’s financial statements and annual report;
• Review the work and the findings of the CCG’s External Auditors;
•M
 onitor the work and effectiveness of the CCG’s Internal Auditors and
Local Counter Fraud Services and make arrangements to re procure these
services at the appropriate time;
•R
 eview the effectiveness of internal controls, the Governing Body
Assurance Framework and risk management systems;
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•R
 eview any findings of Internal Audit, Local Counter Fraud Services,
Governing Body Assurance Framework and risk management systems and
ensure that action plans are in place and completed;
• Monitor any losses and compensation payments; and
• Review the CCG’s gifts and hospitality register and declarations of interest.
See Appendix 6 for the attendance record of each member
2.4.28 	Remuneration Committee - The committee makes recommendations to
the governing body on determinations about pay and remuneration for
employees of the CCG and people who provide services to the CCG, in line
with the CCG’s procedure, and evidence based review as outlined in the
scheme of delegation.
2.4.29 	The Remuneration Committee has met twice in 2014/15. There are 11
members of this committee which is formed of all the Governing Body
members except the three executive officers. The November meeting
was attended by 9 members and the March meeting was attended by
10 members. The Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer attended each
meeting and a Human Resources representative was also present at each
meeting.
2.4.30 	The Committee is responsible for setting pay rates and uplifts for all staff not
subject to national Agenda for Change pay scales. This includes Governing
Body Members, Clinical Directors, Clinical Champions and Practice Nurse
representatives. Rates have been set for 2014/15 and agreed for 2015/16.
The Committee has also monitored the process for evaluation of Governing
Body Members’ Performance.
2.4.31 	Finally, the Remuneration Committee has responsibility for setting policies
that relate to expenses and benefits payments, which have included the
CCG Travel, Subsistence and Expenses Policy and the Patient Participation
Expenses Policy.
2.4.32 H
 ealthier Together Committee in Common and Joint Committee
- At its August 2013 meeting the Governing Body established a Greater
Manchester Healthier Together Committee in Common (HTCiC). The
Governing Bodies of each of the Greater Manchester CCGs also established
committees in common in relation to the Healthier Together programme.
2.4.33	Each HTCiC was comprised of one representative from each of the CCGs
and its constitution and governance arrangements are set out in a terms
of reference which is appended to the CCG’s constitution. At its December
2014 meeting the Governing Body approved a change to this committee
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from a committee in common to a joint committee.
2.4.34	NHS England approved this change to the CCG’s constitution in January
2015.
	Healthier Together is one part of an overall public sector service
transformation programme led by Greater Manchester Local Authorities
and the NHS, alongside other partners. Given the overwhelming support
received through the public consultation, the HTCiC confirmed the case for
change and recommended that a report be produced to address:
• The implantation of the Healthier Together programme
• F urther major transformation work that needed to take place at a Greater
Manchester and/or sector level.
2.4.35	Primary Care Commissioning Committee - The Governing Body
established this committee in December 2014 in line with model terms
of reference issued by NHS England who approved the accompanying
constitution changes in January 2015. The committee becomes operational
from 1st April 2015.
2.4.36	The Committee has been established in accordance with statutory provisions
to enable the members to make collective decisions on the review, planning
and procurement of primary care services in the borough of Wigan, under
delegated authority from NHS England. The majority of members will be
drawn from existing lay members and executive officers of the Governing
Body.
See Appendix 7 for the CCG’s Governance Framework depiction.
2.5

The CCG Risk Management Framework

2.5.1

The key elements of the framework are:
• Governing Body;
• Governing Body Committees;
• CCG Senior Leadership Team;
• Governance and Quality Teams;
• Risk Management Strategy & Policy;
• Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF); and
• Directorate/department risk registers.

Section B

Governance Statement

82

2.5.2 	The GBAF is a means of identifying and quantifying strategic risks within
the organisation and is the means by which the Governing Body monitors
and controls the risks which may impact on the organisation’s capacity to
achieve its objectives.
2.5.3	The GBAF identifies the corporate objectives of the organisation and the
principal risks related to the delivery of these objectives. Key controls are
made explicit together with the assurances on these controls. In addition,
the GBAF identifies linkages with inter-related areas of assurance.
2.5.4 	The GBAF together with the monthly Corporate Report are the two primary
tools used by the Governing Body to measure and monitor the CCG’s
performance. The content of NHS England’s Everyone Counts planning
guidance and Better Care Fund guidance was drawn upon to populate the
GBAF as the CCG is assessed on its delivery against the framework through
a series of quarterly assurance checkpoints.
2.5.5 	The GBAF is presented to the Governing Body twice yearly and is submitted
following presentation at Corporate Governance Committee which fulfils its
role by focusing on risks, controls, gaps in control and resultant action plans.
The Audit Committee also receives the GBAF at its meetings and focuses on
the positive assurances and gaps in assurance.
2.5.6 	Of the 28 risks included in the GBAF at the end of Quarter 3, one risk was
rated extreme. There were no risks rated extreme at the end of Quarter 2
and at the end of Quarter 1, two risks were listed as extreme. The Quarter 3
extreme risk was described as:
 rgent care - if performance standards are not achieved, patients are
U
waiting excessively for treatment and the health economy is in breach of
NHS Constitution pledges.
2.5.7 	During Quarter 4 the additional support provided by the CCG together with
the enhanced performance of the local secondary care foundation trust
began to have a positive impact on A&E activity and patient experience.
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2.5.8

Acceptable risk following risk assessment can be defined as follows:
• The likely consequences are insignificant.
•A
 higher risk consequence is outweighed by the chance of a much larger
benefit.
• The occurrence is remote.
• T he potential financial costs of minimising the risk outweigh the cost
consequences of the risk itself.
•M
 itigation of the risk could lead to further unacceptable risks in other
ways.

2.5.9 	Therefore it is possible that a risk with a high numerical value may be
acceptable to the organisation, but that decision must be taken at
Governing Body/Senior Management level.
2.5.10	In addition to the GBAF which records the risks at corporate level (those
rated high or extreme) there are a number of operational risk registers
managed at Assistant Director level focusing on risks assessed as medium or
low.
2.6

The CCG Internal Control Framework

2.6.1 	A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place
in the clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims
and objectives. It is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
2.6.2 	The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable
level rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
2.6.3 	The control environment within the CCG is established and led by the
Governing Body which reserves powers for itself and delegates powers to
its committees and officers of the CCG. These controls are described in the
CCG’s constitution which includes standing orders, a scheme of reservation
and delegation and prime financial policies. Internal controls operate
over the strategic, planning, organisational, monitoring, measuring, and
improvement elements of the management cycle.
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2.6.4 	The prime financial policies are part of the CCG’s control environment
for managing the organisation’s financial affairs. They contribute to
good corporate governance, internal control and managing risks. They
enable sound administration; lessen the risk of irregularities and support
commissioning and delivery of effective, efficient and economical services.
They also help the Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer to effectively
perform their responsibilities. They are used in conjunction with the scheme
of reservation and delegation.
2.6.5 	The above control environment is underpinned by an extensive portfolio of
human resources and employment policies which provide, in considerable
detail, instructions to members, staff and contractors how to carry out
duties and roles necessary for the CCG to achieve its objectives. The policies
also provide guidance on conduct and behaviour conducive to effective and
efficient working.
2.7

Information Governance and Data Quality and Security

2.7.1 	The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and
procedures by which the NHS handles information about patients and
employees, in particular personal identifiable information.
2.7.2	The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by an
information governance toolkit and the annual submission process provides
assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to
individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently
and effectively.
2.7.3 	The North West Commissioning Support Unit (NWCSU) Information
Governance Team has confirmed that the CCG has achieved level 2
compliance with the Health & Social Care Information Centre’s Information
Governance Toolkit. NWCSU colleagues have provided a good deal of
challenge to our evidence submission which has provided further assurance
to the CCG’s Governing Body.
2.7.4 	We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information
governance systems and processes in place to help protect patient and
corporate information. We have established an information governance
management framework and are developing information governance
processes and procedures in line with the information governance toolkit.
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2.7.5	We have ensured all staff undertake annual information governance training
and have refreshed a staff information governance handbook to ensure staff
are aware of their information governance roles and responsibilities.
2.7.6 	There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of
serious incidents. We have implemented information risk assessment and
management procedures and an information risk culture has been fully
embedded throughout the organisation.
2.7.7	There was one serious incident involving personal data at the CCG in
2014/15 which was reported to the Health & Social Care Information Centre
and the Information Commissioner. No further action was required to be
taken by the CCG.
SUMMARY OF OTHER PERSONAL DATA RELATED INCIDENTS IN 2014/15

2.8

I

Loss of inadequately protected electronic
equipment, devices or paper documents from
secured NHS premises

Nil

II

Loss of inadequately protected electronic
equipment, devices or paper documents from
outside secured NHS premises

Nil

III

Insecure disposal of inadequately protected
electronic equipment, devices or paper
documents

Nil

IV

Unauthorised disclosure

Nil

V

Other

1

Pension Obligations

	As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension
Scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations
contained within the scheme regulations are complied with. This includes
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and
payments into the scheme are in accordance with the scheme rules, and
that member pension scheme records are accurately updated in accordance
with the timescales detailed in the regulations.
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2.9

Equality, Diversity & Human Rights Obligations

	Control measures are in place to ensure that the CCG complies with the
required public sector equality duty set out in the Equality Act 2010. Further
details can be found in the CCG’s annual equality and diversity report to be
found on our website at www.wiganboroughccg.nhs.uk/your-ccg/equalityand-diversity.
2.10

Sustainable Development Obligations

2.10.1	The CCG is required to report its progress in delivering against sustainable
development indicators.
	We are developing plans to assess risks, enhance our performance and
reduce our impact, including against carbon reduction and climate change
adaptation objectives. This includes establishing mechanisms to embed
social and environmental sustainability across policy development, business
planning and in commissioning.
2.10.2	We will ensure the CCG complies with its obligations under the Climate
Change Act 2008, including the Adaptation Reporting power, and the Public
Services (Social Value) Act 2012.
We also set out our commitments as a socially responsible employer.
2.11

Review of Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness of the Use of Resources

2.11.1	Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and the Audit Commission’s
Code of Audit Practice (the Code), the CCG is required to ensure that it
puts in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in their use of resources. The CCG’s external auditors, Grant
Thornton, review this annually and produce a value for money conclusion to
support this work.
2.11.2	When undertaking this review, the following areas were considered:
• Key Indicators of Performance
• Strategic Financial Planning;
• Financial Governance;
• Financial Control;
• Prioritising Resources; and
• Improving Efficiency and Productivity.
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2.11.3	The scope of the auditor’s work included evaluating whether the CCG has
proper arrangements in place for securing financial resilience. The focus
was on whether the CCG has robust systems and processes to effectively
manage financial risks and opportunities, and to secure a stable financial
position that enables it to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.
2.11.4	In addition the work assessed whether the CCG has proper arrangements
for challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
The focus was on how the CCG is prioritising its resources within tighter
budgets, for example by achieving cost reductions and by improving
efficiency and productivity.
2.11.5	In coming to their conclusion the external auditors considered the following
key evidence:
• The Governing Body’s oversight and use of its Assurance Framework;
• New structures and ways of working established by the CCG;
• The level of partnership working and engagement;
• T he CCG’s propensity to scrutinise provider performance including the use
of new data systems;
• Mid-year peer reviews in all of the CCG’s six localities;
• The CCG’s Financial Plan;
• The Risk Management Framework;
•O
 pinions presented by the CCG’s internal auditors (Mersey Internal Audit
Agency – MIAA);
• In year financial performance and the extensive Quality, Innovation,
Productivity & Prevention (QIPP) plans; and
• Performance against key targets.
2.11.6 	On the basis of the external auditor’s work, and having regard to the
guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit Commission, they
are satisfied that in all significant respects the CCG put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year 2014/15.
2.12 	Review of the Effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management &
Internal Control
2.12.1	As Chief Officer I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
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system of internal control within the clinical commissioning group.
2.12.2 M
 y review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed
by the work of the internal auditors and the executive managers and
clinical leads within the CCG who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on
performance information available to me. My review is also informed by
comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and
other reports.
2.12.3 T he GBAF provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls
that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its
principle objectives have been reviewed. The GBAF is presented to the
Governing Body and Audit and Corporate Governance Committees
regularly throughout the year. The quarterly checkpoint meetings with NHS
England North (Lancashire & Greater Manchester) has not highlighted any
deficiencies in the CCG’s system of internal control. The CCG has met its
legal and financial duties.
2.12.4 F ollowing completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for
the CCG, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the CCG’s system of risk
management, governance and internal control.
2.12.5 	In reviewing internal controls, the CCG utilises MIAA internal Audit findings.
Key reports delivered that support this review include:
• Financial Systems – All Significant Assurance;
• CCG Assurance Framework – Significant Assurance;
• Provider Contract Management – Significant Assurance.
2.12.6 	Findings of all internal audits are presented to the Audit Committee and in
addition, a follow up report is also presented which confirms that all actions
agreed have been followed up. At the Audit Committee held in March
2015, there were no actions outstanding beyond their agreed deadline date
to report to the Audit Committee, all follow up actions were completed.
2.12.7 Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for
the CCG, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the CCG’s system of risk
management, governance and internal control. The Director of Internal Audit
gave a Significant Assurance level over the internal controls operated within
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the CCG as follows.
2.13

Director of Internal Audit’s Opinion

2.13.1 Introduction
	In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Director
of Internal Audit (HoIA) is required to provide an annual opinion, based
upon and limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and governance
processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of internal control). This is achieved
through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved
by the Audit Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of
assurance subject to the inherent limitations described below.
2.13.2	The purpose of this Director of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the
assurances available to the Accountable Officer and the Governing Body
which underpin the Governing Body’s own assessment of the effectiveness
of the organisation’s system of internal control. This Opinion will assist the
Governing Body in the completion of its Annual Governance Statement.
2.13.3 Opinion
	My overall opinion is: Significant Assurance can be given that that there
is a generally sound system of internal control designed to meet the
organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally being applied
consistently. However, some weaknesses in the design or inconsistent
application of controls put the achievement of a particular objective at risk.
2.13.4 Basis of Forming the Opinion
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:
2.13.5 Assurance Framework
An Assurance Framework has been established which is designed and
operating to meet the requirements of the Annual Governance Statement
and provide reasonable assurance that there is an effective system of
internal control to manage the principal risks identified by the organisation.
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ASSURANCE ACROSS THE ORGANISATION’S CRITICAL BUSINESS SYSTEMS
Access to
Services

A review of Business Cases, Service Redesign provided Significant
Assurance and confirmed that overall effective arrangements were in
place for business proposals to enter and follow the CCG governance
process through initiation, initial assessment, development and
approval stages.
A review of Provider Contract Management provided significant
assurance and confirmed that overall effective contract management
arrangements we in place for the three main providers, including an
escalation process to the Governing Board.

Transparency
and
Governance

Significant assurance was given in respect of the review of Serious
Incidents. The review confirmed that the CCG has developed robust
systems and processes to review and monitor serious incidents at its
main providers against the Serious Incident Framework. The CCG has
highlighted that further work is required to improve the information
provided by Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
regarding Root Cause Analysis and action plans and they are actively
working with them to address this.

Patient
Participation
and Customer
Service

Significant assurance was given in respect of the Patient Stakeholder
Engagement review. The review noted that subsequent to
authorisation, the CCG had made significant strides in implementing
meaningful processes for the involvement of patients, carers and the
public in their decision making regarding commissioning for service
improvement and redesign.

Informed
Commissioning

Significant assurance was provided in respect of the Information
Governance Toolkit review.

Higher
standards

A review of Healthcare Associated Infections confirmed that overall
the arrangements in place to manage, report and monitor HCAI are
effective.
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2.13.6	Action has been agreed by management to address the recommendations
made in the internal audit reviews and we will continue to undertake
a follow up of the recommendations to provide assurance to the Audit
Committee that the issues raised have been addressed.
2.13.7	The Opinion does not imply that Internal Audit have reviewed all risks
and assurances relating to the organisation. The opinion is substantially
derived from the conduct of risk-based plans generated from a robust and
organisation-led Assurance Framework. As such, it is one component that
the Governing Body takes into account in making its Annual Governance
Statement.

Tim Crowley
Director of Audit, MIAA
March 2015

2.14

Business Critical Models
 o business critical models were introduced at the CCG during 2014/15.
N
Where these are to be applied in future the CCG will ensure that quality
assurance takes place in line with the recommendations in the Macpherson
report.

2.15

Discharge of Statutory Functions

2.15.1	During establishment, the arrangements put in place by the clinical
commissioning group were developed with extensive expert external legal
input, to ensure compliance with all the relevant legislation. That legal
advice also informed the matters reserved for Governing Body decision and
the scheme of delegation.
2.15.2 	The clinical commissioning group has continuously kept under review
all of the statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the National
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated legislative and
regulations and from time to time has sought external legal advice. As a
result, I can confirm that the clinical commissioning group is clear about
the legislative requirements associated with each of the statutory functions
for which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation of those
functions.
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2.15.3 	Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a
lead Director. Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide
the necessary capability and capacity to undertake all of the clinical
commissioning group’s statutory duties.
2.16

Conclusion
 o significant internal control issues have been identified during 2014/15 at
N
Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning Group.

Trish Anderson
Chief Officer
28 May 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NHS WIGAN
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
We have audited the financial statements of NHS Wigan Clinical Commissioning Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial
statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the accounting policies directed by the NHS
Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National
Health Service in England.
We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is subject to audit,
being:
•

the tables of salaries and allowances of senior managers and related narrative notes
in section 6 of the remuneration report

•

the table of pension benefits of senior managers and related narrative notes in
section 7 of the remuneration report

•

the pay multiples disclosures in section 9 of the remuneration report.

This report is made solely to the members of NHS Wigan Clinical Commissioning Group in
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set
out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies
published by the Audit Commission in March 2014. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG)'s members and the CCG as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the
Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards also require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Accountable Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report which
comprises; the introduction by Member Practices, Strategic Report, Members' Report,
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Remuneration Report, Statement of Accountable Officer's responsibilities and Governance
Statement, to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.
In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reported in the financial
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•
•

give a true and fair view of the financial position of NHS Wigan Clinical
Commissioning Group as at 31 March 2015 and of its net operating costs for the year
then ended; and
have been prepared properly in accordance with the accounting policies directed by
the NHS Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant
to the National Health Service in England.

Opinion on other matters
In our opinion:
•

•

the part of the Remuneration Report subject to audit has been prepared properly in
accordance with the requirements directed by the NHS Commissioning Board with
the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National Health Service in
England; and
the information given in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:
• in our opinion the governance statement does not reflect compliance with NHS
England’s Guidance;
• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 19 of the Audit Commission
Act 1998 because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG,
is about to make, or has made, a decision involving unlawful expenditure, or is about
to take, or has taken, unlawful action likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act
1998.
We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
Respective responsibilities of the CCG and auditor
The CCG is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that
the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires
us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant
criteria specified by the Audit Commission in October 2014.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding
that the CCG has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having
regard to the guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in
October 2014, as to whether the CCG has proper arrangements for:
•
•

securing financial resilience
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2015.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on
whether, in all significant respects, the CCG had put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by
the Audit Commission in October 2014, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, NHS
Wigan Clinical Commissioning Group put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2015.
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Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Wigan Clinical
Commissioning Group in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act
1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Mike Thomas
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
Grant Thornton UK LLP
Royal Liver Building,
Liverpool.
L3 1PS
28 May 2015
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Foreword to
the Accounts
The Clinical Commissioning Group was licenced from 1 April
2013 under provisions enacted in the Health & Social Care Act
2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 2006.
These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared by Wigan
Borough CCG under section 17 of schedule 1A of the National Health Service Act
2006 (as amended) in the form which the Secretary of States has, with the approval
of the Treasury, directed.
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) requires Clinical Commissioning
Groups to prepare their Annual Report and Annual Accounts in accordance with
Directions issued by NHS England.

Trish Anderson			
Mr Mike Tate
Chief Officer 				Chief Finance Officer
28 May 2015				
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the Year Ended 31 March
2015
Note

2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

Total Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits

4.1.1

6,814

5,950

Operating Expenses

5

418,769

406,491

Other operating revenue

2

(2,215)

(161)

Net operating expenditure before interest

423,368

412,280

Investment Revenue

8

0

0

Other (gains)/losses

9

0

0

Finance costs

10

0

0

423,368

412,280

0

0

423,368

412,280

4.1.1

4,311

4,374

Operating Expenses

5

3,147

2,958

Other operating revenue

2

(19)

(10)

7,439

7,322

4.1.1

2,503

1,576

Operating Expenses

5

415,622

403,533

Other operating revenue

2

Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption

11

Total Net Expenditure for the year
Of which:
Administration Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits

Net administration costs before interest
Programme Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits

(2,196)

(151)

Net programme expenditure before interest

415,929

404,958

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant &
equipment

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets

0

0

Movements in other reserves

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on assets held for sale

0

0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes

0

0

Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures

0

0

Reclassification Adjustments

0

0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets

0

0

423,368

412,280

Impairments and reversals

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year

22

Notes 1 to 44 also form part of this statement.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31st March 2015
Note

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2014
£000

Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment

13

0

0

Intangible assets

14

11

15

Investment property

15

0

0

Trade and other receivables

17

0

0

Other financial assets

18

Total non-current assets

0

0

11

15

Current assets:
Inventories

16

0

0

Trade and other receivables

17

2,415

726

Other financial assets

18

0

0

Other current assets

19

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents

20

44

61

2,459

787

Total current assets

0

0

Total current assets

Non-current assets held for sale

21

2,459

787

Total assets

2,470

802

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

23

(20,741)

(23,986)

Other financial liabilities

24

0

0

Other liabilities

25

0

0

Borrowings

26

0

0

Provisions

30

(824)

0

Total current liabilities

(21,565)

(23,986)

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

(19,095)

(23,184)

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

23

0

0

Other financial liabilities

24

0

0

Other liabilities

25

0

0

Borrowings

26

0

0

Provisions

30

(53)

(510)

(53)

(510)

(19,148)

(23,694)

(19,148)

(23,694)

Revaluation reserve

0

0

Other reserves

0

0

Charitable Reserves

0

0

(19,148)

(23,694)

Total non-current liabilities
Total Assets Employed
Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund

Total Taxpayers' Equity:

Notes 1 to 44 also form part of this statement.
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The financial statements were approved in accordance with the CCG
Scheme of Delegation on 26th May 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

Trish Anderson
Chief Officer 				
28 May 2015		
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity for the Year Ended
31 March 2015
Changes in taxpayers’
equity for 2014-15

General
fund
£000

Revaluation
reserve
£000

Other
reserves
£000

Total
reserves
£000

(23,694)

0

0

(23,694)

Transfer between reserves in respect of
assets transferred from closed NHS bodies

0

0

0

0

Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning
Group balance at 1 April 2014

(23,694)

0

0

(23,694)

Balance at 1 April 2014

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning
Group taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Net operating expenditure for the
financial year

(423,368)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of
intangible assets

0

0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held
for sale

0

0

Total revaluations against revaluation
reserve

0

0

0

0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial
assets

0

0

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial
assets

0

0

0

0

Impairments and reversals

0

0

0

0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions

0

0

0

0

Movements in other reserves

0

0

0

0

Transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

Release of reserves to the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure

0

0

0

0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of
available for sale financial assets

0

0

0

0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other
bodies

0

0

0

0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution

0

0

0

0

(447,062)

0

0

(447,062)

Net funding

427,914

0

0

427,914

Balance at 31 March 2015

(19,148)

0

0

(19,148)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group Expenditure for
the Financial Year
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Changes in taxpayers’
equity for 2013-14

General
fund
£000

Revaluation
reserve
£000

Other
reserves
£000

Total
reserves
£000

0

0

0

0

Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed
NHS bodies as a result of the 1 April 2013
transition

19

0

0

19

Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning
Group balance at 1 April 2013

19

0

0

19

Balance at 1 April 2013

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning
Group taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Net operating costs for the financial year

(412,280)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible
assets

0

0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held
for sale

0

0

Total revaluations against revaluation
reserve

0

0

0

0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial
assets

0

0

0

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial
assets

0

0

0

0

Impairments and reversals

0

0

0

0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions

0

0

0

0

Movements in other reserves

0

0

0

0

Transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

Release of reserves to the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure

0

0

0

0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of
available for sale financial assets

0

0

0

0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other
bodies

0

0

0

0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution

0

0

0

0

(412,261)

0

0

(412,261)

Net funding

388,567

0

0

388,567

Balance at 31 March 2014

(23,694)

0

0

(23,694)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group Expenditure for
the Financial Year
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2015
Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments and reversals
Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption
Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Interest paid
Release of PFI deferred credit
Other Gains & Losses
Finance Costs
Unwinding of Discounts
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities

5
5

17
23
30
30

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment
(Payments) for intangible assets
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health
(Payments) for other financial assets
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)
Loans made in respect of LIFT
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT
Rental revenue
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net parliamentary funding received
Other loans received
Other loans repaid
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on
Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT
Capital grants and other capital receipts
Capital receipts surrendered
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash
equivalents held in foreign currencies
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End
of the Financial Year
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2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

(423,368)
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(1,689)
0
(3,245)
0
(124)
491
(427,931)

(412,280)
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(726)
0
23,986
0
0
510
(388,506)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(427,931)

(388,506)

427,914
0
0
0

388,567
0
0
0

0
0
427,914

0
0
388,567

(17)

61

61
0

0
0

44

61
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Notes to the
Financial Statements
Whilst many of the Notes to the Financial Statements can be
directly cross referenced to the Statement of Net Comprehensive
Expenditure and the Statement of Financial Position, some provide
additional information and cannot be directly cross referenced (Note
27, 28, 29, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 38, 39, 40 and 41).

1 Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning
groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued
by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the Manual for Accounts 2014-15 issued
by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Manual for
Accounts follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they
are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as determined by
HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where
the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting
policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of
the clinical commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has
been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group
are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items
considered material in relation to the accounts.
1.1

Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.

	Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the
continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as
evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published
documents.
	Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether
or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by
another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept
of going concern for the final set of Financial Statements. If services will
continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going
concern basis.
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1.2 	Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention
modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial
liabilities.
1.3 	Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from
outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only
if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they
transfer from one public sector body to another.
1.4 	Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of
absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting
Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting
Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions
(which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been
restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their
transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement
of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed
separately from operating costs. Other transfers of assets and liabilities
within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS
20 and similarly give rise to income and expenditure entries.
1.5 	Charitable Funds
From 2014-15, the divergence from the Government Financial Reporting
Manual that NHS Charitable Funds are not consolidated with bodies’ own
returns is removed. Under the provisions of IFR S10, those Charitable Funds
that fall under common control with NHS bodies are consolidated within the
entities’ accounts.
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1.6

P
 ooled Budgets
Where the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget
arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 the
clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget,
identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.

	If the clinical commissioning group is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the
clinical commissioning group recognises:
• The assets the clinical commissioning group controls;
• The liabilities the clinical commissioning group incurs;
• The expenses the clinical commissioning group incurs; and,
• T he clinical commissioning group’s share of the income from the pooled
budget activities.
	If the clinical commissioning group is involved in a “jointly controlled assets”
arrangement, in addition to the above, the clinical commissioning group
recognises:
• T he clinical commissioning group’s share of the jointly controlled assets
(classified according to the nature of the assets);
• T he clinical commissioning group’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
and,
• The clinical commissioning group’s share of the expenses jointly incurred.
	The Clinical Commissioning Group has entered in to a pooled budget with
Wigan Council to provide an Integrated Community Equipment Service.
The pooled budget is hosted by Wigan Council. As a commissioner of
healthcare services, the Clinical Commissioning Group makes contributions
to the pool, which is then used to purchase healthcare equipment. Details
are included in a memorandum note to the accounts.
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1.7 	Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty
In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies,
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the
estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
1.7.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
	The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of
applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
	The accounting arrangements for balances transferred from predecessor
PCTs (“legacy” balances) are determined by the Accounts Direction issued
by NHS England on 12 February 2014. The CCG did not inherit any material
legacy balances. The CCG’s arrangements in respect of settling NHS
Continuing Healthcare claims are disclosed in note 30 to these financial
statements.
1.7.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
	The following are the key estimations that management has made in the
process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:
Prescribing expenditure
	Wigan Borough CCG receives financial information from NHS Business
Services Authority relating to the costs of drugs prescribed by Wigan
Borough CCG prescribers (independent GPs). The information available for
actual drug costs prescribed in the year is provided in arrears, therefore the
actual data received at the Statement of Financial Position date is to 28th
February only, and an estimate for March is required. This estimate has been
calculated using forecast information provided by NHS Business Services
Authority.
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 rovision for NHS Continuing Healthcare claims for periods of care
P
post 1/4/2013
	A provision has been made in the Clinical Commissioning Group accounts
for an estimate of the likely future costs of claims, where patients have
submitted a request to the CCG for a review of their continuing healthcare
eligibility from 1 April 2013.
	The provision is based upon claims made against the CCG which have not
yet been fully assessed, and where the likelihood of success is over 50%, a
provision is made. The likelihood of success is estimated by the Continuing
Care team responsible for assessing claims. The costs are then estimated
based on the average cost of nursing care per week. The cost of this
provision in 2014-15 is £213,054. Note 30 refers.
	The estimate is based upon the best information available at the time.
However, there is a degree of uncertainty associated with this calculation
and therefore a greater level of risk associated with it.
1.8 	Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the
extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration receivable.
	Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the
following year, that income is deferred.
1.9

Employee Benefits

1.9.1 	Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the
period in which the service is received from employees, including bonuses
earned but not yet taken.
	The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the
period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees
are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.
1.9.2 Retirement Benefit Costs
	Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS
Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme
that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed
under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The
scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
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Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution
scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in the
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
accounting period.
	For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional
pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the
clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of
the method of payment.
1.10 Other Expenses
	Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the
goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of
the consideration payable.
	Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical
commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation, which
occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.
1.11

Property, Plant & Equipment

1.11.1 Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
• It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
• It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group;
• It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
• The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,
• The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,
•C
 ollectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and
individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are
functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase
dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under
single managerial control; or,
• Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new
building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
	Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of
components with significantly different asset lives, the components are
treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic
lives.
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1.11.2 Valuation
	All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing
the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and
bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are measured
subsequently at fair value.
	Land and buildings used for the clinical commissioning group’s services or
for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial position
at their re-valued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any impairment.
	Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying
amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined
at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:
• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and,
• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost.
	HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement
cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would
meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative
site can be valued.
	Properties in the course of construction for service or administration
purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses
immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.
	Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not
considered to be materially different from fair value.
	An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except
when it reverses impairment for the same asset previously recognised in
expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the
decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not
result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as
an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there
is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.
Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit
are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation
reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure.
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1.11.3	Subsequent Expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original
specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent
expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is
capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is written-out
and charged to operating expenses.
1.12

Intangible Assets

1.12.1 	Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which
are capable of sale separately from the rest of the clinical commissioning
group’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They
are recognised only:
•W
 hen it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential be provided to, the clinical commissioning group;
• Where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably; and,
• Where the cost is at least £5,000.
	Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value.
Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, for example an
operating system is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant
and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware,
for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.
Expenditure on research is not capitalised but is recognised as an operating
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
• T he technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use;
• The intention to complete the intangible asset and use it;
• The ability to sell or use the intangible asset;
•H
 ow the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits
or service potential;
• T he availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and,
• T he ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

Section C

Annual Accounts

120

1.12.2 Measurement
	The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria
above are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is
incurred.
	Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value
by reference to an active market, or, where no active market exists, at
amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), and indexed
for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value. Internally-developed
software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in
development costs and technological advances.
1.13 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments
	Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not
depreciated.
	Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs
or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current
assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner
that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service potential of
the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the
clinical commissioning group expects to obtain economic benefits or service
potential from the asset. This is specific to the clinical commissioning group
and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful
lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any
changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
	At each reporting period end, the clinical commissioning group checks
whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible noncurrent assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of
an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to
determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.
	A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic
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value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve
for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise
from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but
capped at the amount that would have been determined had there been
no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited
to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and
thereafter to the revaluation reserve.
1.14 	Donated Assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with
a matching credit to Income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired
as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations,
impairments and sales are as described above for purchased assets. Deferred
income is recognised only where conditions attached to the donation
preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
1.15 	Government Grants
The values of assets received by means of a government grant are credited
directly to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions
attached to the grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
1.16 	Non-current Assets Held For Sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met when:
• The sale is highly probable;
• The asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition; and,
•M
 anagement is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
	Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Fair value is open market
value including alternative uses.
	The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount and is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. On disposal, the balance for
the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to the general reserve.
	Property, plant and equipment that are to be scrapped or demolished does
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not qualify for recognition as held for sale. Instead, it is retained as an
operational asset and its economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised
when it is scrapped or demolished.
1.17 	Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
1.17.1 	The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially
recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for
the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s
surplus/deficit.
	Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability
and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
	Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
	Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components
are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or
finance leases.
1.17.2 	The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the amount of the clinical commissioning group’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the clinical commissioning
group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
	Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1.18 Private Finance Initiative Transactions
	HM Treasury has determined that government bodies shall account for
infrastructure Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes where the government
body controls the use of the infrastructure and the residual interest in
the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service concession
arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC 12. The
clinical commissioning group therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item
of property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The
services received under the contract are recorded as operating expenses.
	The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component
parts, using appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:
• Payment for the fair value of services received;
• Payment for the PFI asset, including finance costs; and,
• P ayment for the replacement of components of the asset during the
contract ‘lifecycle replacement’.
1.18.1 	Services Received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant
expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.
1.18.2 	PFI Asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when
they come into use. The assets are measured initially at fair value in
accordance with the principles of IAS17. Subsequently, the assets are
measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the
clinical commissioning group’s approach for each relevant class of asset in
accordance with the principles of IAS 16.
1.18.3 	PFI Liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised.
It is measured initially at the same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets
and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with
IAS 17.
	An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate
in the lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and is charged to
‘finance costs’ within the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.
	The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance
lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to repay the lease
liability over the contract term.
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	An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative
indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In accordance with IAS 17,
this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead
treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance,
this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is
presented as a contingent finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure.
1.18.4 	Lifecycle Replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract
(‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they meet the clinical
commissioning group’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised
at the time they are provided by the operator and are measured initially at
their fair value.
	The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle
replacement is pre-determined for each year of the contract from the
operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle
component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance
lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively.
	Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount
determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as an expense when
the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount
determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a
deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to
the operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or
the useful economic life of the replacement component.
1.18.5 	Assets Contributed by the Clinical Commissioning Group to the
Operator for Use in the Scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items
of property, plant and equipment in the clinical commissioning group’s
Statement of Financial Position.
1.18.6	Other Assets Contributed by the Clinical Commissioning Group to the
Operator
Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the clinical
commissioning group to the operator before the asset is brought into use,
which are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised
initially as prepayments during the construction phase of the contract.
Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the clinical commissioning
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group, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the finance
lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.
1.19 	Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using
the first-in first-out cost formula. This is considered to be a reasonable
approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.
1.20 	Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant
risk of change in value.
	In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net
of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral
part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.
1.21 	Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s
discount rate as follows:
• Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 1.50%
• Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.05%
• Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Plus 2.20%
• All employee early departures: 1.30%
	When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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	A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning
group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and
has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring
provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity.
1.22 	Clinical Negligence Costs
The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which
the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS
Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims.
The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation
Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the
legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group.
1.23 	Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses
Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership
contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are
charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.
1.24 	Continuing healthcare risk pooling
In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme has been introduced by NHS England for
continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.
Under the scheme clinical commissioning group contribute annually to a
pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims.
1.25 	Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme
Carbon Reduction Commitment and similar allowances are accounted for
as government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be
realised within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets. They
are valued at open market value. As the clinical commissioning group makes
emissions, a provision is recognised with an offsetting transfer from deferred
income. The provision is settled on surrender of the allowances. The asset,
provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value at the end
of the reporting period.
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1.26 	Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
clinical commissioning group, or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently
reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment
is remote.
	A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical
commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
	Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at
their present value.
1.27 	Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group
becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets
are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has
been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
• Held to maturity investments;
• Available for sale financial assets; and,
• Loans and receivables.
	The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
1.27.1 	Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their
host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate
value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain
or loss recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus
or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned
on the financial asset.
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1.27.2 	Held to Maturity Assets
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
1.27.3 	Available For Sale Financial Assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available for sale or that does not fall within any of the
other three financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value
with changes in value taken to the revaluation reserve, with the exception
of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/
deficit on de-recognition.
1.27.4 	Loans & Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After
initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the
effective interest method.
	Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where
possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.
	The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the initial
fair value of the financial asset.
	At the end of the reporting period, the clinical commissioning group
assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value
through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and
impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
asset.
	For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in expenditure and the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment
of receivables.
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	If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of
the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
1.28 Financial Liabilities
	Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position
when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables,
when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has
been paid or has expired.
	Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost.
Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.
1.28.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities
	Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the
higher of:
• The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less
cumulative amortisation; and,
• T he amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.
1.28.2 F inancial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their
host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate
value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. The net
gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability.
1.28.3	Other Financial Liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from
Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the
financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
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1.29	Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the
scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed
assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the
amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.30 	Foreign Currencies
The clinical commissioning group’s functional currency and presentational
currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency
are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate
on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are
recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit in the period
in which they arise.
1.31 	Third Party Assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients)
are not recognised in the accounts since the Clinical Commissioning Group
has no beneficial interest in them.
1.32 	Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have
contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed
legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They
are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the
generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which
govern the way that individual cases are handled.
	Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings
in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have
been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning
group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being
included as normal revenue expenditure).
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1.33 	Subsidiaries
Material entities over which the clinical commissioning group has the power
to exercise control so as to obtain economic or other benefits are classified
as subsidiaries and are consolidated. Their income and expenses; gains and
losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and cash flows are consolidated in
full into the appropriate financial statement lines. Appropriate adjustments
are made on consolidation where the subsidiary’s accounting policies are
not aligned with the clinical commissioning group or where the subsidiary’s
accounting date is not co-terminus.
	Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.
1.34 	Associates
Material entities over which the clinical commissioning group has the
power to exercise significant influence so as to obtain economic or other
benefits are classified as associates and are recognised in the clinical
commissioning group’s accounts using the equity method. The investment is
recognised initially at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect the clinical
commissioning group’s share of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/
losses. It is also reduced when any distribution is received by the clinical
commissioning group from the entity.
	Associates that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.
1.35 	Joint Ventures
Material entities over which the clinical commissioning group has joint
control with one or more other parties so as to obtain economic or other
benefits are classified as joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method.
	Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’.
1.36 	Joint Operations
Joint operations are activities undertaken by the clinical commissioning
group in conjunction with one or more other parties but which are not
performed through a separate entity. The clinical commissioning group
records its share of the income and expenditure; gains and losses; assets and
liabilities; and cash flows.
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1.37

 esearch & Development
R
Research and development expenditure is charged in the year in which it
is incurred, except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly
defined project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured.
Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected
and is amortised through the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
on a systematic basis over the period expected to benefit from the project.
It should be re-valued on the basis of current cost. The amortisation is
calculated on the same basis as depreciation.

1.38 	Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been
Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following
Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2014-15, all of which are
subject to consultation:
• IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
• IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement
• IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
• IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers
	The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material
impact on the accounts for 2014-15, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue
2014-15
Total
£000

2014-15
Admin
£000

2014-15
Programme
£000

2013-14
Total
£000

Recoveries in respect of
employee benefits

0

0

0

0

Patient transport services

0

0

0

0

Prescription fees and charges

0

0

0

0

Dental fees and charges

0

0

0

0

Education, training and
research

0

0

0

0

Charitable and other
contributions to revenue
expenditure: NHS

0

0

0

0

Charitable and other
contributions to revenue
expenditure: non-NHS

6

6

0

0

Receipt of donations for capital
acquisitions: NHS Charity

0

0

0

0

Receipt of Government grants
for capital acquisitions

0

0

0

0

1,860

0

1,860

0

Income generation

0

0

0

0

Rental revenue from finance
leases

0

0

0

0

Rental revenue from operating
leases

0

0

0

0

349

13

336

161

2,215

19

2,196

161

Non-patient care services to
other bodies *

Other revenue
Total other operating revenue

	* N
 on-patient care services revenue is income received from Wigan Council in respect of local authority
contribution to joint health and social care priorities.
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3 Revenue
	
Revenue is totally from the supply of services. The Clinical Commissioning
Group receives no revenue from the sale of goods.

From rendering of services
From sale of goods
Total
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2014-15
Total
£000

2014-15
Admin
£000

2014-15
Programme
£000

2013-14
Total
£000

2,215

19

2,196

161

0

0

0

0

2,215

19

2,196

161
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Employee benefits expenditure

4.1.1

0

Termination benefits

Annual Accounts

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised
costs

Less: Employee costs capitalised

Total - Net admin employee benefits including
capitalised costs

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits
(note 4.1.2)

6,814

0

6,814

0

6,814

0

Other employment benefits

Gross employee benefits expenditure

0

Other post-employment benefits

580

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
0

451

Social security costs

Other pension costs

5,783

Total
£000

Salaries and wages

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits

4.1

6,025

0

6,025

0

6,025

0

0

0

0

580

451

4,994

Permanent
Employees
£000

2014-15 Total

789

0

789

0

789

0

0

0

0

0

0

789

Other
£000

4,311

0

4,311

0

4,311

0

0

0

0

380

311

3,620

Total
£000

4 Employee Benefits and Staff Numbers

4,003

0

4,003

0

4,003

0

0

0

0

380

311

3,312

Permanent
Employees
£000

Admin

308

0

308

0

308

0

0

0

0

0

0

308

Other
£000

2,503

0

2,503

0

2,503

0

0

0

0

200

140

2,163

Total
£000

2,022

0

2,022

0

2,022

0

0

0

0

200

140

1,682

Permanent
Employees
£000

Programme
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481

0

481

0

481

0

0

0

0

0

0

481

Other
£000

Annual Accounts

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised
costs

5,950

0

5,950

Total - Net admin employee benefits including
capitalised costs

Less: Employee costs capitalised

0

5,950

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits
(note 4.1.2)

Gross employee benefits expenditure

154

0

Other employment benefits

Termination benefits

0

Other post-employment benefits

543

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
0

410

Social security costs

Other pension costs

4,843

Total
£000

Salaries and wages

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits expenditure (continued)

Section C

4.1.1

5,604

0

5,604

0

5,604

154

0

0

0

543

410

4,497

Permanent
Employees
£000

2013-14 Total

346

0

346

0

346

0

0

0

0

0

0

346

Other
£000

4,374

0

4,374

0

4,374

0

0

0

0

393

319

3,662

Total
£000

4,057

0

4,057

0

4,057

0

0

0

0

393

319

3,345

Permanent
Employees
£000

Admin

317

0

317

0

317

0

0

0

0

0

0

317

Other
£000

1,576

0

1,576

0

1,576

154

0

0

0

150

91

1,181

Total
£000

1,547

0

1,547

0

1,547

154

0

0

0

150

91

1,152

Permanent
Employees
£000

Programme
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29

0

29

0

29

0

0

0

0

0

0

29

Other
£000

4.1.2

 ecoveries in respect of employee benefits
R
The Clinical Commissioning Group made no recoveries in respect of
employee benefits.

4.2

Average number of people employed

Total
Of the above:
Number of whole time
equivalent people
engaged on capital
projects

Total
Number

2014-15
Permanently
employed

Other*
Number

2013-14
Total
Number

123

113

10

116

0

0

0

0

* Other includes seconded and agency staff, interim contractors and apprentices.

4.3

Staff sickness and ill health retirements
2014-15
Number

2013-14

Total Days Lost

775

558

Total Staff Years

120

116

6

5

Average working
Days Lost

Number

	The above figures are provided on a calendar year basis in line with NHS
reporting requirements. There were no ill health retirements throughout the
financial year.
	The Clinical Commissioning Group has not agreed any early retirements;
therefore there are no costs to be met by the Clinical Commissioning Group.
4.4
Exit packages and severance payments agreed in the financial year
	Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure. There have been
no exit packages agreed by the CCG in 2014/15.
	There are no non-contractual severance payments made following judicial
mediation, relating to non-contractual payments in lieu of notice in
2014/15. Therefore no non-contractual payments were made to individuals
where the payment value was more than 12 month’ of their annual salary.
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	In the previous financial year, 2013/14, there was one compulsory
redundancy of £154,000.
	No early retirements have been agreed by the Clinical Commissioning Group
for 2014-15. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme
and would not be included in the CCG tables.
	Where exit packages are made to Senior Managers who are included
within the Remuneration Report, details of these will also be found in the
Remuneration Report. The Clinical Commissioning Group had no exit
packages relating to these individuals in 2014-15.
4.5

Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS
Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can
be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.
The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS
employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of
the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to
be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to
the scheme for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial
statements do not differ materially from those that would be determined at
the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that
“the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate
assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:
a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme
actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial
assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated
membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and
are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting
purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2015, is
based on valuation data as 31 March 2014, updated to 31 March 2015
with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this
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actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also
been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the
scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme
(England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts
can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained
from The Stationery Office.
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the
benefits due under the scheme (taking into account its recent demographic
experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension
Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012.
The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary
of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of
the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer
representatives as deemed appropriate. FAQ 3: End of Year Issues 8
c) Scheme provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised
below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all
the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be
met before these benefits can be obtained:
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based
on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last three years
pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of
reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as
defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon
total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of
their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum
amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as
“pension commutation”.
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the
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Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in
the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From
2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) has been used and replaced the
Retail Prices Index (RPI).
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members
of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties
effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s
pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for
death after retirement is payable.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional
pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute
to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by
other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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5 Operating Expenses
2014-15
Total
£000

2014-15
Admin
£000

2014-15
Programme
£000

2013-14
Total
£000

5,996

3,493

2,503

5,123

818

818

0

827

6,814

4,311

2,503

5,950

1,968

1,268

700

4,557

Services from foundation trusts

261,029

0

261,029

241,268

Services from other NHS trusts

34,104

73

34,031

48,307

1

0

1

0

53,949

0

53,949

49,299

150

150

0

147

Supplies and services – clinical

1,907

0

1,907

1,558

Supplies and services – general

1,609

480

1,129

835

414

156

258

207

1,033

387

646

484

33

25

8

22

1,809

365

1,444

3,168

Impairments and reversals of
receivables

0

0

0

0

Inventories written down

0

0

0

0

Depreciation

0

0

0

0

Amortisation

4

4

0

4

Impairments and reversals of property,
plant and equipment

0

0

0

0

Impairments and reversals of intangible
assets

0

0

0

0

Impairments and reversals of financial
assets

0

0

0

0

· Assets carried at amortised cost

0

0

0

0

· Assets carried at cost

0

0

0

0

· Available for sale financial assets

0

0

0

0

Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing
body members
Executive governing body members *
Total gross employee benefits
Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS
England

Services from other NHS bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS
bodies
Chair and Non Executive Members

Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises **
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Impairments and reversals of noncurrent assets held for sale

0

0

0

0

Impairments and reversals of
investment properties

0

0

0

0

108

108

0

110

Internal audit services ****

0

0

0

73

Other services

1

1

0

0

General dental services and personal
dental services

0

0

0

0

56,858

0

56,858

54,862

212

0

212

0

48

0

48

31

2,090

5

2,085

921

143

8

135

24

Grants to other public bodies

0

0

0

0

Clinical negligence

1

1

0

1

Research and development (excluding
staff costs)

0

0

0

0

143

113

30

78

0

0

0

0

Provisions

491

0

491

510

CHC Risk Pool contributions

605

0

605

0

59

3

56

25

Total other costs

418,769

3,147

415,622

406,491

Total operating expenses

425,583

7,458

418,125

412,441

Audit fees ***
Other non statutory audit expenditure

Prescribing costs
Pharmaceutical services
General ophthalmic services
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Other professional fees excl. audit

Education and training
Change in discount rate

Other expenditure

* The Executive Governing Body Members includes all Governing Body Members on employment
contracts. This includes the Clinical Governing Body Members.
** Premises costs include all costs payable to NHS Property Services and Community Health Partnerships.
This includes the costs of the CCG’s administrative headquarters, and the payments that cover the
subsidised and void space within clinics and health centres, paid by the CCG as commissioner of those
health services.
*** The Audit Fee above includes a fee paid to Grant Thornton of £90,000 plus VAT.
**** CCG expenditure on Internal Audit Services, which are provided by Mersey Internal Audit Agency
(MIAA), is reported within services from NHS Trusts, the host organisation for MIAA.
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6 Better Payment Practice Code
2014-15
Number

2014-15
£000

2013-14
Number

2013-14
£000

10,016

65,370

7,752

47,811

9,534

61,795

7,327

45,189

95%

95%

95%

95%

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the
Year

2,237

304,774

1,858

295,718

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within
target

2,118

303,896

1,817

295,463

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices
paid within target

95%

100%

98%

100%

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in
the Year
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid
within target
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade
invoices paid within target
NHS Payables

	The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Clinical Commissioning
Group to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date, or within 30 days of
receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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7 Income Generation Activities
	The Clinical Commissioning Group does not undertake an income
generating activities.

8 Investment Revenue
The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any investment revenue.

9 Other Gains & Losses
The Clinical Commissioning Group has not made any other gains or losses.

10 Finance Costs
The Clinical Commissioning Group has not incurred any finance costs.

 et Gains (Loss) on Transfer
11 N
by Absorption
	Transfers as part of a reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of
absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting
Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting
Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions
(which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been
restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their
transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement
of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed
separately from operating costs.
There are no gains or losses on transfer by absorption.
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12 Operating Leases
12.1 A
 s lessee
Leases shown below include:
• Payment to NHS Property Services Ltd (NHS PS). These include the costs of
the lease for the CCGs headquarters and also the cost of use of properties
owned or leased by NHS PS where the costs are not fully recovered
from the occupants. These are currently paid by the CCG as the Clinical
Commissioning Group commissions the services. The funding sits within
the CCG allocation.
• Payment to Community Health Partnerships Ltd (CHP). These include the
cost of use of LIFT properties leased by CHP where the costs are not fully
recovered from the occupants. These are currently paid by the CCG as the
Clinical Commissioning Group commissions the services. The funding sits
within the CCG allocation.
• Lease cars. These are short term car leases of between one and three
years.
	The costs included above within this note are shown within premises and
establishment costs in note 5.
12.1.1 Payments recognised as an expense
Land
£000

Buildings
£000

Other
£000

2014-15
Total
£000

2014-15
Total
£000

Minimum lease payments

0

1,749

16

1,765

3,134

Contingent rents

0

0

0

0

0

Sub-lease payments

0

0

0

0

0

Total

0

1,749

16

1,765

3,134

Payments recognised
as an expense

	While our arrangements with NHS Property Services Ltd for the lease of the
Clinical Commissioning Groups headquarters falls within the definition of
operating leases, the rental charge for future years has not yet been agreed.
Consequently, this note does not include future minimum lease payments
for these arrangements.
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12.1.2 	Future minimum lease payments
Land
£000

Buildings
£000

Other
£000

2014-15
Total
£000

2013-14
Total
£000

No later than one year

0

0

11

11

576

Between one and five
years

0

0

12

12

2,262

After five years

0

0

0

0

10,098

Total

0

0

23

23

12,936

Payable:

T he above does not include the element of costs paid to NHS PS and CHP
for the subsidised or void elements of the occupancy of health service
property, as this is not a long term lease commitment for the Clinical
Commissioning Group.
	Only the known future minimum lease payments for lease car arrangements
are included.
	In 2013-14, the Clinical Commissioning Group recognised future long term
lease payments in respect of the lease on its headquarters. This reflected
that at the time there was no national NHS guidance on treatment of this
issue.
	NHS England: Annual Accounts Guidance 2014-15 (Publications Gateway
Ref 03278) Page 17 now confirms that as the Clinical Commissioning
Group has not signed a lease on its CCG headquarters, only current year
commitments should be disclosed.
12.2 As lessor
	The Clinical Commissioning Group are not a lessor therefore have no income
receipts as a lessor.
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13 Properties, Plant & Equipment
13.1 	The Clinical Commissioning Group has had no property, plant or equipment
throughout the financial year.
13.1 	Additions to assets under construction
The Clinical Commissioning Group has had no assets under construction
throughout the financial year.
13.2 	Donated assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no donated assets at 31 March
2015.
13.3 	Government granted assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no government granted assets at 31
March 2015.
13.4 	Property revaluation
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no property throughout the financial
year.
13.5 	Compensation from third parties
The Clinical Commissioning Group has not received any compensation from
third parties.
13.6 	Write down to recoverable amount
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no assets that are written down to
recoverable amounts.
13.7 	Temporarily idle assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no temporarily idle assets as at 31
March 2015.
13.8 	Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no fully depreciated assets still in use
as at 31 March 2015.
13.9 	Economic lives of assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no property, plant or equipment
throughout the financial year.
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Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014
Additions purchased
Additions internally generated
Additions donated
Additions government granted
Additions leased
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale and reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation gains
Impairments charged
Reversal of impairments
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body
Cumulative amortisation adjustment following revaluation
Cost / Valuation At 31 March 2015
Amortisation 1 April 2014
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale and reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation gains
Impairments charged
Reversal of impairments
Charged during the year
Transfer (to) from other public sector body
Cumulative amortisation adjustment following revaluation
Amortisation At 31 March 2015
Net Book Value at 31 March 2015
Purchased
Donated
Government Granted
Total at 31 March 2015

2014-15

14 Intangible Assets
19
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
19
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
4
0
0
8
11
11
0
0
11

Computer Software:
Purchased
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Computer Software:
Internally Generated
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Licences &
Trademarks
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Patents
£000

Development
Expenditure
(internally generated)
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

149

19
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
19
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
4
0
0
8
11
11
0
0
11

Total
£000

14.1 	Donated assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no donated assets at 31 March
2015.
14.2 	Government granted assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no Government granted assets at 31
March 2015.
14.3 	Revaluation
No intangibles were revalued by the Clinical Commissioning Group
throughout the financial year.
14.4 	Compensation from third parties
The Clinical Commissioning Group has not received any compensation from
third parties.
14.5 	Write down to recoverable amounts
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no assets that are written down to
recoverable amounts.
14.6 	Non-capitalised assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any significant intangible
assets that are controlled by the Clinical Commissioning Group but
recognised as assets because they didn’t meet the recognition criteria of IAS
38.
14.7 	Temporarily idle assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no temporarily idle assets as at 31
March 2015.
14.8 	Cost or valuation of fully amortised assets
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no fully amortised assets still in use
as at 31 March 2015.
14.9

Remaining economic lives
Minimum Life
(years)

Maximum Life
(Years)

Computer software: purchased

3

3

Computer software: internally generated

0

0

Licences & trademarks

0

0

Patents

0

0

Development expenditure (internally generated)

0

0

There has been no change of asset lives throughout the financial year.
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15 Investment Properties
	The Clinical Commissioning Group has had no investment property as at
31 March 2015.

16 Inventories
The Clinical Commissioning Group has no inventories as at 31 March 2015.

17

Trade & Other Receivables
Current
2014-15
£000

Noncurrent
2014-15
£000

Current
2013-14
£000

Noncurrent
2013-14
£000

1,547

0

25

0

0

0

0

0

748

0

340

0

23

0

339

0

0

0

0

0

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income

76

0

7

0

Provision for the impairment of receivables

0

0

0

0

21

0

15

0

Private finance initiative and other
public private partnership arrangement
prepayments and accrued income

0

0

0

0

Interest receivables

0

0

0

0

Finance lease receivables

0

0

0

0

Operating lease receivables

0

0

0

0

Other receivables

0

0

0

0

Total Trade & other receivables

2,415

0

726

0

Total current and non current

2,415

NHS receivables: Revenue
NHS receivables: Capital
NHS prepayments and accrued income
Non-NHS receivables: Revenue
Non-NHS receivables: Capital

VAT

726

	The majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded
by Government to provide funding to Clinical Commissioning Groups
to commission health services, no credit scoring of them is considered
necessary.
There is no credit risk associated with any of the receivables.
	No financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired have had
terms renegotiated.
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17.1

Receivables past their due date but not impaired
2014-15
£000

Noncurrent
2013-14
£000

By up to three months

1

106

By three to six months

0

8

By more than six months

0

0

Total

1

114

	The due date used is 14 days from the invoice date as stated on invoice
terms.
	£364 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the
statement of financial position date.
	The Clinical Commissioning Group did not hold any collateral against
receivables outstanding at 31 March 2015.
17.2

Provision for impairment of receivables

	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no provisions for the impairment of
receivables as at 31 March 2015.

18 Other Financial Assets
	The Clinical Commissioning Group and consolidated group had no other
financial assets as at 31 March 2015.

19 Other Current Assets
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other current assets as at 31
March 2015.
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20 Cash & Cash Equivalents
2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

61

0

(17)

61

44

61

44

60

Cash with Commercial banks

0

0

Cash in hand

0

1

Current investments

0

0

44

61

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service

0

0

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks

0

0

Total bank overdrafts

0

0

44

61

0

0

Balance at 1 April 2014
Net change in year
Balance at 31 March 2015
Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position

Balance at 31 March 2015
Patients’ money held by the clinical commissioning group, not included
above

 on-current Assets Held
21 N
for Sale
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no non-current assets held for sale
as at 31 March 2015.

 nalyses of Impairments
22 A
& Reversals
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no impairments or reversals of
impairments recognised in expenditure during 2014-15.
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23 Trade & Other Payables
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other current assets as at 31
March 2015.
Current
2014-15
£000

Non
current
2014-15
£000

Current
2013-14
£000

Noncurrent
2013-14
£000

0

0

0

0

1,503

0

373

0

0

0

0

0

NHS accruals and deferred income

1,629

0

3,915

0

Non-NHS payables: revenue

1,325

0

1,106

0

0

0

0

0

15,899

0

18,277

0

69

0

66

0

VAT

0

0

0

0

Tax

78

0

79

0

0

0

0

0

238

0

170

0

Total Trade & Other Payables

20,741

0

23,986

0

Total current and non-current

20,741

Interest payable
NHS payables: revenue
NHS payables: capital

Non-NHS payables: capital
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income
Social security costs

Payments received on account
Other payables

23,986

	There are no liabilities included above for payments due in future years
under arrangements to buy out the liability for early retirement over 5 years.
	Other payables include £83,204 outstanding pension contributions at 31
March 2015. The value of outstanding pension contributions at 31 March
2014 was £82,861.

24 Other Financial Liabilities
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other financial liabilities as at 31
March 2015.
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25 Other Liabilities
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no other liabilities as at 31 March
2015.

26 Borrowings
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no borrowings as at 31 March 2015.

27 P rivate Finance Initiative, LIFT
& Other Service Concession
Arrangements
27.1 	Off-Statement of Financial Position private finance initiative, LIFT and
other service concession arrangements
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no private finance initiative, LIFT
or other service concession arrangements that were excluded from the
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015.
27.2 	On-Statement of Financial Position private finance initiative, LIFT and
other service concession arrangements
The Clinical Commissioning Group had no private finance initiative, LIFT or
other service concession arrangements that were included in the Statement
of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015.

28 Finance Lease Obligations
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no financial lease obligations as at
31 March 2015.

29 Finance Lease Receivables
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no financial lease receivables as at
31 March 2015.
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30 Provisions
Current
2014-15
£000

Noncurrent
2014-15
£000

Current
2013-14
£000

Noncurrent
2013-14
£000

Pensions relating to former directors

0

0

0

0

Pensions relating to other staff

0

0

0

0

Restructuring

0

0

0

0

Redundancy

0

0

0

0

Agenda for change

0

0

0

0

Equal pay

0

0

0

0

Legal claims

0

0

0

0

Continuing care *

160

53

0

0

Other **

664

0

0

510

Total

824

53

0

510

Total current and non-current

877

510

	* A provision has been made in the Clinical Commissioning Group accounts
for an estimate of the likely future costs of NHS Continuing Healthcare
claims, where patients have submitted a request to the CCG for a review of
their continuing healthcare eligibility for periods of care from 1 April 2013.
	The provision is based upon claims made against the CCG which have not
yet been fully assessed, and where the likelihood of success is over 50%, a
provision is made. The likelihood of success is estimated by the Continuing
Care team responsible for assessing claims. The costs are then estimated
based on the average cost of nursing care per week.
** Provision in other relates to two items;
	- restructuring costs at Central Manchester University Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust (CMUHFT) and the reconfiguration of Trafford Hospital.
The provision is based on a Heads of Terms agreement between CMUHFT
and Greater Manchester CCG’s. The agreement reached in 2012-13 was
that each Greater Manchester CCG would contribute to the costs as part
of a Greater Manchester risk share agreement. A provision of £510,000
was originally made in the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounts
in 2013-14 and has been partially utilised in this year. The remaining
£386,000 is expected to fully discharge in 2015-16.
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	- contractual payments due to North West Commissioning Support Unit
(CSU) in 2015-16 as a result of decision to terminate a number of Service
Level Agreements in 2014-15. These contractual payments are in relation
to fixed costs incurred by the CSU in the following areas;
• Human Resources and Organisational Development;
• Communications and Engagement;
• Provider Quality Management;
• Governance;
• Financial Reporting; and
• Business Intelligence.
	The total provision of £278,000 made is net of a contribution towards these
costs made by CSU. The CCG has agreed an estimate of those costs with
the CSU, but they are classified as a provision as the exact amounts will not
be confirmed until 2015/16.
	There is nothing included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority
as at 31 March 2014 in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of the Clinical
Commissioning Group.
	Under the Accounts Directions issued by NHS England on 24 February 2015,
NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities relating to NHS
Continuing Healthcare claims relating to previously unassessed periods of
care, before the establishment of Clinical Commissioning Groups. The legal
liability to discharge these claims remains with the CCG. The total value of
legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions to 31 March 2013, which is
accounted for by NHS England on behalf of this CCG at 31 March 2015, is
£3,886,195.
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Section C

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Arising during the year

Utilised during the year

Reversed unused

Unwinding of discount

Change in discount rate

Transfer (to) from other public sector
body

Balance at 31 March 2015

0
0
0

Between one and five years

After five years

Balance at 31 March 2015

Annual Accounts

0

Within one year

Expected timing of cash flows:

0

Balance at 1 April 2014

Pensions
Relating
to Former
Directors
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Pensions
Relating to
Other Staff
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Restructuring
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Redundancy
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Agenda for
Change
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Equal Pay
£000s

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Legal
Claims
£000s

213

0

53

160

213

0

0

0

0

0

213

0

Continuing
Care
£000s

	Provisions
The table below shows the breakdown of the provisions made by the CCG in 2014-15 and expected timing for discharge.

664

0

0

664

664

0

0

0

0

(124)

278

510

Other
£000s

158

877

0

53

824

877

0

0

0

0

(124)

491

510

Total
£000s

31 Contingencies
2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

Equal Pay

0

0

NHS Litigation Authority Legal Claims

0

0

Employment Tribunal

0

0

Other employee related litigation

0

0

Redundancy

0

0

179

0

0

0

179

0

Contingent Assets

0

0

Amounts payable against contingent assets

0

0

Net value of contingent assets

0

0

Contingent liabilities

Continuing Care
Amounts recoverable against contingent liabilities
Net value of contingent liabilities
Contingent assets

	The Clinical Commissioning Group has a contingent liability relating to the
NHS Continuing Healthcare claims on the CCG for periods of care from 1st
April 2013. This is based upon the difference between the full potential
value of the liability, and the value provided for based on likelihood of
success as assessed by the Continuing Healthcare team.
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32 Commitments
32.1 Capital Commitments
	The Clinical Commissioning Group had no contracted capital commitments
not otherwise included in these financial statements as at 31 March 2015.
32.2 Other Financial Commitments
	The Clinical Commissioning Group and consolidated group had entered into
non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases, private finance initiatives or
other service concession arrangements) which expire as follows:
2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

£000

£000

298

351

In more than one year but not more than five years

0

298

In more than five years

0

0

298

649

In not more than one year

Total

	This is for one contract with Care UK which was held by Department of
Health on behalf of the NHS up to 31 March 2013 and transferred to NHS
England on 1 April 2013. It remains a seven year fixed contract, with no exit
clause, starting in January 2009 and it ends in January 2016.

33 Financial Instruments
33.1 Financial risk management
	Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that
financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the
risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.
	Because NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through
parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced
by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited
role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies,
to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical
commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds
and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational
activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the clinical
commissioning group in undertaking its activities.
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	Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department,
within parameters defined formally within the NHS Clinical Commissioning
Group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the
Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the NHS Clinical
Commissioning Group and internal auditors.
33.1.1 	Currency risk
The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is principally a domestic organisation
with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK
and sterling based. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has no overseas
operations. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and therefore has low
exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
33.1.2 Interest rate risk
	The Clinical Commissioning Group borrows from government for capital
expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England. The
borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated
assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for
the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
33.1.3 	Credit risk
Because the majority of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and revenue
comes parliamentary funding, NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has
low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the
financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade
and other receivables note.
33.1.4 	Liquidity risk
The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is required to operate within
revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Parliament.
	NHS Clinical Commissioning Group draws down cash to cover expenditure,
as the need arises. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is not, therefore,
exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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33.2

Financial assets 	
Note

Embedded derivatives

At ‘fair value
through profit
and loss’
2014-15
£000

Loans and
Receivables
2014-15
£000

Available
for Sale
2014-15
£000

Total
2014-15
£000

0

0

0

0

Receivables:
·          NHS

17

0

2,182

0

2,182

·          Non-NHS

17

0

23

0

23

Cash at bank and in hand

20

0

44

0

44

Other financial assets

0

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2015

0

2,249

0

2,249

At ‘fair value
through profit
and loss’
2013-14
£000

Loans and
Receivables
2013-14
£000

Available
for Sale
2013-14
£000

Total
2013-14
£000

0

0

0

0

Embedded derivatives
Receivables:
·          NHS

17

0

365

0

365

·          Non-NHS

17

0

339

0

339

Cash at bank and in hand

20

0

61

0

61

Other financial assets

0

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2015

0

765

0

765

	These balances are those reported within the Statement of Financial Position
and also Note 17 and Note 20.

Section C

Annual Accounts

162

33.3

Financial liabilities	
Note

Embedded derivatives

At ‘fair value
through profit
and loss’
2014-15
£000

Other
2014-15
£000

Total
2014-15
£000

0

0

0

Payables:
·          NHS

23

0

3,132

3,132

·          Non-NHS

23

0

17,461

17,461

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance
lease obligations

0

0

0

Other borrowings

0

0

0

0

278

278

0

20,871

20,871

At ‘fair value
through profit
and loss’
2013-14
£000

Other
2013-14
£000

Total
2013-14
£000

0

0

0

·          NHS

0

4,288

4,288

·          Non-NHS

0

19,553

19,553

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance
lease obligations

0

0

0

Other borrowings

0

0

0

Other financial liabilities

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2015

0

23,841

23,841

Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2015

Embedded derivatives

30

Payables:

	These balances are those reported within the Statement of Financial Position
and also Note 23 and Note 30.
	There are no liabilities payable to the Department of Health, and all liabilities
are expected to discharge in one year or less.
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344 Operating Segments
T he Clinical Commissioning Group considers that they have only one
segment which is commissioning of healthcare services
Gross
expenditure
£'000

Income
£'000

Net
expenditure

Total
assets

Total
liabilities

Clinical
Commissioning
Group

425,583

Total

425,583

Net assets

£'000

£'000

£'000

(2,215)

423,368

2,470

(21,618)

(19,148)

(2,215)

423,368

2,470

(21,618)

(19,148)

£'000

35 Pooled Budgets
	
The Clinical Commissioning Group and consolidated group had entered
into a pooled budget with Wigan Council for the provision of an Integrated
Community Equipment Service. The pooled budget is hosted by Wigan
Council.
	Under the arrangement, funds are pooled under Section 75 of the National
Health Service Act 2006, for the provision of an Integrated Community
Equipment Service.
	The CCG has included within its account 23% of the total costs of the
pooled budget within its financial position. There were no balances held by
this budget at the balance sheet date, as the budget broke even, therefore
no element of over or underspend is included within the CCG’s financial
position.
2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

Wigan Council

651

717

Wigan CCG

198

198

Total

849

915

Staff Costs

310

320

Non Staff Costs

164

174

Equipment

375

421

Total

849

915

Gross Funding

Expenditure
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364 NHS LIFT Investments
T he Clinical Commissioning Group had no NHS LIFT investments as at 31
March 2015.

37 Intra-Government &
Other Balances
Current
Receivables
2014-15
£000

Noncurrent
Receivables
2014-15
£000

Current
Payables
2014-15
£000

Noncurrent
Payables
2014-15
£000

Balances with:
· Other Central Government bodies

21

0

271

0

· Local Authorities

30

0

3,319

0

Balances with NHS bodies:
· NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group

426

0

154

0

· NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts

1,868

0

2,978

0

Total of balances with NHS bodies:

2,294

0

3,132

0

· Public corporations and trading funds
· Bodies external to Government
Total balances at 31 March 2015

0

0

0

0

70

0

14,019

0

2,415

0

20,741

0

Current
Receivables
2013-14
£000

Noncurrent
Receivables
2013-14
£000

Current
Payables
2013-14
£000

Noncurrent
Payables
2013-14
£000

36

0

233

0

318

0

7,010

0

288

0

216

0

77

0

4,072

0

Balances with:
· Other Central Government bodies
· Local Authorities
Balances with NHS bodies:
· NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group
· NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts
Total of balances with NHS bodies:

365

0

4,288

0

· Public corporations and trading funds

0

0

0

0

·          Bodies external to Government

7

0

12,455

0

726

0

23,986

0

Total balances at 31 March 2014

These balances are reported within the Statement of Financial Position and
also Note 17 and Note 23
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38 Related Party Transactions
	
The following are members of the Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning
Group Governing Body, who have declared interests with organisations
that the CCG have business with. Only organisations that the CCG have
transacted with are listed within this note.				
	
Mrs T Anderson (Chief Officer) is a Public Sector Director with Wigan LIFT
(none remunerated) and is a former employee of Wigan Council. The CCG
do not pay Wigan LIFT but these are administered by Community Health
Partnerships (CHP) so payments to CHP have been included for transparency.
Her husband is a Consultant at Mersey Care NHS Trust.
	
Dr T Dalton (Chair) is a GP, GP Trainer and GP Appraiser. He is a director
at Shakespeare Surgery Ltd and Shakespeare Services Ltd and is also a
minority shareholder in Shakespeare Surgery Ltd, a company that provide
GMS Services to the NHS and a minority shareholder in Shakespeare
Services Ltd, a company that provides private travel, training and health
advice. Shakespeare Surgery Ltd is also a shareholder of Health First ALW
Community Interest Company, which acts a provider of various health
services and a mechanism for GP federated working. Dr Dalton is also a
member of the NW Leadership Academy Board.
	
Dr Ellis (Clinical Governing Body Member) is a GP partner at Mesnes View
Surgery. He has one share in Wigan Federation.
	
Dr Wahie (Clinical Governing Body Member) is a GP at SSP Health
Surgeries. He practices at Lower Ince and Ince Surgeries. He is a shareholder
in Cardium a GP Federation. His wife works at Lancashire Teaching
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (Royal Preston Hospitals) and he has a family
member who works at Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust.
Dr Trivedi (Clinical Governing Body Member) is a GP partner at Dr Trivedi
and Partners. He practices at Westleigh Medical and Abram Surgery. He
is President of British International Doctors Association and a member of
Health First (Provider).
Dr Marwick (Clinical Governing Body Member) is a GP partner at Beech
Hill Medical Practice. He is a shareholder in Wigan Borough Federated
Healthcare, as a practice member and is also a small shareholder of Glaxo
Shares.
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Dr Kumar (Clinical Governing Body Member) is a Senior Partner at Dr
Kumar’s Surgery (Russell and Partners) He is Associate Director of Post
Graduate GP Education, Health Education England. His practice is a founder
member of Health First Federation. He has interests in GP Workforce
Development and Post Graduate Training. His Practice Manager is a director
of Health First Federation.
	
Dr Atrey (Clinical Governing Body Member) is a GP at Meadowview
Surgery, Atherton. His wife is also a GP at this surgery. He has family who
work in West Suffolk NHS Trust and Imperial College Hospital Healthcare
NHS Trust. Dr Atrey is a member of Wigan LMC and a member of CIC
Health First Federation.
 r F Costello (Lay Member) was a former Deputy Chief Executive at Wigan
M
Council and a Long Standing Governor of Wigan & Leigh College.
 s H Meredith (Governing Body Nurse Member) is a director of HMeredith
M
Ltd providing interim support to NHS Organisations and has worked with
Trafford CCG and St Helens CCG within the last year.
Maurice Smith (Lay Member) is a Director of Education for the Church of
England in the Diocese of Manchester.
 r M Tate (Chief Finance Officer) is married to an employee of 5 Boroughs
M
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. His wife is also an Audit Chair/Governor
of St John Rigby Sixth Form College, a member of the ‘Heart of Mersey’
Charity Finance Committee and Treasurer of the Wigan Branch of ‘Guide
Dogs for the Blind’.
	The GPs on the Governing Body represent all GP practices who are members
of Wigan Borough Clinical Commissioning Group. The transactions with
these practices are listed in total, other than those directly linked to
Governing Body Members.
	Details of related party transactions with individuals in 2014/15
are as follows:
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Payments
to Related
Party
£000

Receipts
from
Related
Party
£000

Amounts
owed to
Related
Party
£000

Amounts
due from
Related
Party
£000

5 Boroughs Partnership FT

24,739

0

79

565

Wigan Council

17,963

2,048

3,319

29

Community Health Partnerships Trust

2,053

0

0

0

Lancashire Teaching FT (Royal Preston
Hospitals)

1,256

0

58

0

Stockport FT

200

0

5

0

HealthFirst ALW CIC

174

0

0

0

Beech Hill Medical Practice (Dr Marwick)

87

0

30

0

Dr Russell & Partners (Dr Kumar)

33

0

11

0

Dr Ellis & Kreppel (Dr Ellis)

28

0

14

0

The Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals FT

22

0

8

0

Dr Trivedi & Trivedi (Dr Trivedi)

21

0

8

0

Dr AK & N Atrey (Dr Atrey)

21

0

11

0

Gloucestershire Cheltenham Hospitals FT

20

0

6

0

Lower Ince Surgery (Dr Wahie)

20

0

12

0

Imperial College (Hammersmith Hospitals)

19

0

10

0

Ince Surgery (Dr Wahie)

19

0

11

0

Shakespeare Surgery (Dr Dalton)

16

0

9

0

Merseycare NHS Trust

11

0

2

0

NHS England

11

0

2

76

St Helens CCG

8

0

0

0

Trafford CCG

0

0

124

0

Health Education England

0

37

0

0

1,686

0

852

0

All other GP Practices within Wigan Borough
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2013/14 Related Party transactions are listed below for comparative
purposes:
Payments
to Related
Party
£000

Receipts
from
Related
Party
£000

Amounts
owed to
Related
Party
£000

Amounts
due from
Related
Party
£000

5 Boroughs Partnership FT

23,328

0

126

0

Wigan Council

15,744

142

7,009

318

Community Health Partnerships Trust

2,036

0

0

10

Trafford CCG

1,745

0

215

0

Lancashire Teaching FT (Royal Preston
Hospitals)

1,144

0

0

0

174

0

0

0

Beech Hill Medical Practice (Dr Marwick)

68

0

12

0

Dr Russell & Partners (Dr Kumar)

28

0

10

0

Dr Ellis & Kreppel (Dr Ellis)

18

0

6

0

Lower Ince Surgery (Dr Wahie)

17

0

5

0

Imperial College (Hammersmith Hospitals)

17

0

3

0

Dr Trivedi & Trivedi (Dr Trivedi)

16

0

6

0

Ince Surgery (Dr Wahie)

15

0

5

0

Shakespeare Surgery (Dr Dalton)

12

0

2

0

Gloucestershire Cheltenham Hospitals FT

8

0

1

0

Merseycare NHS Trust

8

0

1

0

The Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals FT

2

0

0

0

Stockport FT

0

0

0

0

Dr AK & N Atrey (Dr Atrey)

0

0

0

0

NHS England

0

0

0

241

St Helens CCG

0

0

0

0

Health Education England

0

0

0

0

1,224

0

266

0

HealthFirst ALW CIC

All other GP Practices within Wigan Borough
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	The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year,
the Clinical Commissioning Group has had a significant number of material
transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the
parent department. For example:
• NHS England (including Commissioning Support Units);
• NHS Foundation Trusts;
• NHS Trusts;
• NHS Litigation Authority; and
• NHS Business Services Authority.
The most significant of these, not already listed above, are listed below:
Payments
to Related
Party
£000

Receipts
from
Related
Party
£000

Amounts
owed to
Related
Party
£000

Amounts
due from
Related
Party
£000

176,877

0

1,198

0

Bridgewater Community Healthcare FT

33,016

0

169

825

Bolton FT

16,963

0

606

112

Salford Royal FT

10,537

0

81

122

NW Ambulance FT

8,629

0

0

0

Central Manchester University FT

5,309

0

21

0

St Helens NHS Trust

3,577

0

71

119

Warrigton and Halton Hospital Trust

3,290

0

15

0

Wrightington, Wigan & Leigh NHS FT

The Clinical Commissioning Group had no material transaction with other
government department and other central and local government bodies
that have not been listed above.
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39 E vents After The Reporting
Period
	
There are no adjusting post balance sheet events which will have a material
effect on the financial statements of the Clinical Commissioning Group.
	NHS England recently announced details of the Clinical Commissioning
Groups approved to take on greater delegated responsibility or to jointly
commission GP services from 1st April 2015. The new primary care cocommissioning arrangements are part of a series of changes set out in the
NHS Five Year Forward View to deliver a new deal for primary care and
another step towards plans set out by NHS England early last year to give
patients, communities and clinicians more involvement in deciding local
health services.
	The Clinical Commissioning Group has been approved under delegated
commissioning arrangements and will assume full responsibility for
contractual GP performance management, budget management and the
design and implementation of local incentive schemes from 1st April 2015.
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40 Losses & Special Payments
	
The Clinical Commissioning Group had one loss in 2014-15. This was a loss
of £72.79 relating to the write off of an unrecoverable debt.
Total
Number of
Cases
2014-15
Number

Total Value
of Cases
2014-15
£

Total
Number of
Cases
2013-14
Number

Total Value
of Cases
2013-14
£

Administrative write-offs

1

73

0

0

Fruitless payments

0

0

0

0

Store losses

0

0

0

0

Book Keeping Losses

0

0

0

0

Constructive loss

0

0

0

0

Cash losses

0

0

0

0

Claims abandoned

0

0

0

0

Total

1

73

0

0

41 T hird Party Assets
T he Clinical Commissioning Group no third party assets as at 31 March
2015.
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42 F inancial Performance Duties
 linical Commissioning Groups have a number of financial duties under the
C
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).
	The Clinical Commissioning Group’s performance against those duties was
as follows:
£000
Revenue Resource Limit

428,802

Net Operating Resources

423,368

Surplus

5,434

NHS Act Section

2014-15
Target
£000

2014-15
Performance
£000

2013-14
Target
£000

2013-14
Performance
£000

Duty
Achieved

223H(1) Expenditure not to exceed income

431,017

425,583

416,514

412,441

Yes

223I(2) Capital resource use does not exceed
the amount specified in Directions

0

0

0

0

Yes

223I(3) Revenue resource use does not
exceed the amount specified in Directions

428,802

423,368

416,353

412,280

Yes

223J(1) Capital resource use on specified
matter(s) does not exceed the amount
specified in Directions

0

0

0

0

Yes

223J(2) Revenue resource use on specified
matter(s) does not exceed the amount
specified in Directions

0

0

0

0

Yes

8,690

7,439

7,910

7,322

Yes

223J(3) Revenue administration resource use
does not exceed the amount specified in
Directions

	
Note: For the purpose of 223H(1); expenditure is defined as the aggregate
of gross expenditure on revenue and capital in the financial year; and,
income is defined as the aggregate of the notified maximum revenue
resource, notified capital resource and all other amounts accounted for as
received in the financial year (whether under provisions of the Act or from
other sources, and included here on a gross basis).
	The Clinical Commissioning Group did not incur any capital expenditure
throughout the financial year.
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43 Impact of IFRS
 ccounting under IFRS had no impact on the results of the Clinical
A
Commissioning Group during the 2014-15 financial year.

 nalysis of Charitable
44 A
Reserves
T he Clinical Commissioning Group had no charitable reserves at 31 March
2015.
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